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Websitc:  www.asxperpetual.com.au

Auditors
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Burns, Philp & Company Limited, incocporated iund domiciled in Australin, is a public company limited by shares,




12/09 '02 THU 10:07 FAX

Chairmean’s Report

Managing Director’s Review of Operations
Dircctors’ Report

Corporate Governance Statermnent
Shareholder Information

Financial Report and Iﬂdapendcnt Audit Report

Burns, Philp & Company Limited and Its Cantrznlled Entities — 2002 Annusl Report

10

20
26

g1 000




| lgJ 008
12708 02 THU 10:08 FAX

| Chairman’s Report ]

1 am pleased to report another ycar of significant growth * centry into negetiations to acquire Kraft’s South
and improved petformance at Burns Philp. Ametican Fleischmann’s yeast and bakery ingredients
The trading result showed improved grofitability largely due business.
to the success of strategic initiatives cver the last few years Burns Philp has continued to invest in tnajor new plant and
and in particular successful cost reduction projects, The net plant expansions in China, Portugal, Germany, India and
profit attributable to shareholders (betore significant items Indonesia. The Group has also implemented a number
and recognition of a US tax benefit) increased 50.8% to of new cost reduction initiatives to improve profitability
$133.5 million from $88.5 million (2001). including the closure of the relatively high cost plant in
From a corporatc perspective, 2 number of strategies were Oakland, California,
executed or more recently undertaken to enhance the On behalf of the Directors and shareholders 1 thank all
Group’s strucrure and flexibility including: employees for théir continuing dedication and hard waerk,
- raising of additional equity, coincident with and in The Group'’s core businesses are performing well and this,
support of the buy-back of the 7.5% Notes; coupled with the improved balance sheet, gives the Board
. . id in the s ability t inue to grow it
+ the restructure of the terms, conditions and maturity :’Z';ge::“ in E‘ Group’s ability to continue to grow its
of the Group’s debt including the raising of US$400 )
mitlion Senior Subordinatcd Notes, so that, after
taking into account the redemption of the outstanding
Euroconvertible Bonds, the earliest debt maturity
is now 2006 with the balance maturing in 2012;
- agreemecnt to sell the non core Terninals business, , ’I/
subjcct to certain conditions;
= agreement to sell the non core Vincgar business, Alan MecGregor AO
subject to certain conditions: and Chairman

2 Burns, Philp & Company Limited gind its Controlled Entities — 2002 Annusl Report
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Managing Direc

or’s Revicw of Opcerations

Burns Philp, ap Australian based food company, is involved in the production and distribution of food ingredients and branded
consumer fsod produets. The Group produces fresh and dry bakers® yeast for commercial bakeries, dry yeast for consumer use
in homebaking and manufactures and distributes bakery ingredients, industrial vinegar and yeast extracts, The Group also
blends, markets and distributes herbs and spices, dry sauce mixes and other consumer food products throughout North
America. During the course of the financial year, the Group also operated portside bulk liquid storage facilities in Australia
and New Zealand. Conditional agteernents for the sale of both the vinegar business and the Terrninals business were entered
into after year-end.

HIGHLIGHTS

30 Junc 30 June
A% million 2002 2001 % Change
Sales 1,391.6 1,4216 (2.194)
Trading EBITDA before significant adjustments 294.5 2619 12.4%
Significant adjustments;
~ Provision for closure of Oakland plant (25.1) - N/A
- Provision for amounts due from Kmart USA (10.1) — N/A
Trading EBITDA 259.3 261.9 {1.0%)
Depreciation (60.6) (64.9) 6.6%
Amortisation of goodwill and identifiable intangibles ' (11.9) (11.6) (2.6%)
Trading EBIT 186.8 185.4 0.8%
Net interest cxpense 65.9) (82.8) 20.4%
Income tax: .
~ Before recognition of US future inzome tax benefit (15.3) (12.1) (59.5%)
~ US future income tax benefit recogmised :47.9 - N/A
Total income tax benefit/(expense) :28.6 (12.1) N/A
Outside equity intcrests :(3.3) (2.0) (65.0%)
Net profit attributable to members of Burns, Philp & Company Limited 146.2 I 88.5 65.2%
Net profit attributable to members of Bums, Philp & Company Limited
excluding significant adjustments and recognition of US tax benefit 133.5 88.5 50.8%
Total shareholders' funds 479.5 277.9 72.5%

The key measures of EBITDA, EBIT aud net profit were up on last year and in line with forecasts befote adjusting for significant
items. The result was due 1o a combination of margin improvetnents, cost reduction initiatives and profit cnhancement projects
implemented during this and the preceding two years,

The financial performance of the Group was also enhanced by the continued growth'in developing markets, The Company is
a global business, with 48 plants in 20 countries. Its geographical diversity means that the Group can continue to perfortn well
despite difficult trading conditions in some markets.

Burns, Philp & Company Limited and its Controlled Enfities - 2002 Annual Report 3
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Managing Director’s Review of Operations (continued)

The increase in shareholders' funds from $277.9 million
to $479.5 million reflected the satisfactory trading result
(including the $47.9 million tax beaefit) and the capital
raising that accompanied our August 2001 refinancing
(%240 million), These were partially offset by the
unfavourable meverent in our foreign currency translation
reserve primarily due to the devaluatjion of the Argentine
peso (8151 million).

The Group invested approximately $82 million on capital
expenditure during the year, the majority of this being
invested in profit cnhancement programs. Major

projects included the raticnalisation of the Group's yeast
manufacturing operations in Argentinia and expansion

of ycast production capacity in Portugal, Germany, India,
Indonesia and China. Tn March 2002 the Group closed
its relatively high cost yeast plant in COakland, California.
This initiative will make a positive contribution to
profitability next year. Further rationalisation and
productivity improvements in our herts and spices
operation provided immediate material cost reductions,
We also cnjoyed the benefits flowing 1Tom other projects
completed during the years ended 30 June 2000 and 2001.

On 13 August 2001 the Group refinanced its senior debt.

In addition the Group raised $240 million of new cquity
through the issuance of approximately 799 million converting
preference shares and bought back approximatcly $266 million
of outstanding 7.5% Notes. The result of these transactions
was that the Group strengthened its balance sheert, obtained
long term funding and achieved the financial flexibility to
continue to develop the business.

On S Junc 2002 the Group announced that it had entered

into a preliminary agreement with Kraft Foods Interational

Inc. to acquire its Fleischmann's yeast and industrial bakery

ingredients business in South Ametica. The agreement

is conditional upon the negotiation of i sale and purchase
_agreement as well as approval of the beard of Kraft Foods Inc.

4 Burns, Philp & Company Limifed and its Controlled Enrities —

On 2] Jjune 2002 the Group raised US$400 mijlion of new
senior subotdinated debt in the US, This debt has a term
of 10 years, maturing in 2012, As part of this fund rising,
the Group was to tedeem its outstanding US$98.3 millien
puaranteed subordinated convertible debt bonds, The
tedemption was completed on 9 September 2002, This
new debt raising, together with the redemption of the
convertible debt bonds, has resulted in the Group’s debt
being restructured so that its earliest maturity is now 2006
with the balance maturing in 2012,

On 7 August 2002 the Group announeccd that it had cntered
into an agrcement for the sale of the Tenminals Division in
Australia and New Zcaland to subsidiaries of Kancb Pipe
Line Operating Partnership LP for anticipated procesds

of approximatelyi$83 million. Completion of the sale is
conditional on obtaining a number of third party consents.
It is anticipated that the sale will be completed by the end
of September 2002,

On 23 August 2002 the Company entered into a conditional
agreement for the sale of the Vinegar Division to Swander
Pace Capital L.L.C., a US baged private equity investor.
The anticipated proceeds of the sale are approximately

$88 million. It is anticipatcd that the sale will be completed
by the end of September 2002,

The Group has significant tax losses in the United States,

In accordance with Australian and US Accounting Standards,
the Group is 1equired to recognise tax losses provided they
satisfy certain criteria, including under Australian Accounting
Standards, that the Directors are of the opinion that virtual
certainty exists in relation to the recoverability of a componcnt
of the unrccognised future income tax benefit. Accordingly,
the result includey a gain arising on the recognition of a
347.9 million deferred tax assct in relation to the US businesses.

2002 Annual Report
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BURNS PHILP’S BUSINESS SEGMENTATION

A review of the Group’s four areas of operations (Yeast and Bakery Ingredients, Vinegar, Herbs and Spices, Terminals and

Bulk Storage) follows,

The pie charts below illustrate the contributions made by the Group’s busincsses for the year ended 30 June 2002,

Sales 2001/2002 (A$1,392 million)

Terminals & RPulk Storage

Vinegat Py

6%

Herbs & Spices

37m Yeast/Bakury

60%

EBIT 2001/2002 [Excluding Corporate]
{Including Share of Net Profits of Associates)
(A$207 million)

Terminals & Bulk Storuge

Herhs & Spices
22%

Yenst/Bakery
69%

EBITDA 2001/2002 [Excluding Corporate)
[Including Share of Net Profits of Associates]
(A$278 million}

Terminnls &

Bulk Stornge
5%

Viacpar
5 48

N\, Yeast/Bakery
) %

Herbs
& Spices
19%

Consolidated Total Asscts*
as at 30 June 2002 (A$1,45S million)

Yeast/Bakiry

Herbs
& Spleus
16%

Technical &
Corporate 5% Terminaly &

Bulk Sterage 4%

* Includes segment cash and equity accounted trivestments. Excludes unallocated cagh, deferred tax assets and defeteed borrowings costs.

Burns, Philp & Company Limiied and its Controlled Entities — 2002 Annunl Report
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Managing Director’s Review of Qperations (cohtinued)

Yeast and Bakery Ingredients

30 June 30 June

AS miilion 2002 2001 % Change
Sales 834.0 857.7 (2.8%)
Trading EBITDA (before Oakland closure costs provision) 2223 204.7 8.6%
Trading EBIT (before Oakland closurs costs provision) 168.3 146.6 14.8%
Oakland clasure costs provision (25.1) - N/A
Trading EBITDA 197.2 204.7 (3.7%)
Trading EBIT 143.2 146.6 (2.3%)

Total assets

1,013.0 1,292.3 (21.6%)

The yeast and bakery ingredients group is segmented into four regions and the pie charts below illustrate the contributions

made by each region for the financial year 2002.

Yeast and Bakery Saleg 2001/2002
{43834 million)

Asia Pacific
1 7%

North Amerien
43%

South Ameriea
200

Yeast and Bakery EBIT 2001/2002
[Including Sharc of Net Profits of Associates]
(A$143 million)

Asin Pacific North America
17% . 0%

South America
9%

r Ycast and Bakery EBITDA 2001/2002
[Including Share of Net Profits of Associates]
(AS$197 million)

Asia Pacilic
&%

North Amcrica

Europc
23%

South Amenica
20%

Yeast and Bakery Consolidated Total Assets
as at-30 June 2002 (A$1,013 million)

Asia Varvilic North Americn
23% - ; 39%

South Americn
14%

6 Burns, Philp & Company Limited gnd its Controllsd Entities
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Bakers’ yeast is a non substitutable ingredient used in the
production of bread, 8 food staple cansumed by millions
of people around the world every day. Yeast is produced
in fresh and dry forms. Fresh yeast is available as a liquid
(cream) or a solid (compressed, crunibled or block).
Fresh yeast is more consistent and as such is the preferred
product, particularly by the large, automated bakeries,
However, fresh yeast has a limited life and its distribution
is dependent upon adequatc infrastructure (ie roads,
refrigeration). Where infrastructure is limited, dry yeast

is preferred, Burns Philp is primarily & producer of fresh
yeast, The Group has two global yeagt competitors and also
competes with a number of regional znd loeal producers.

In addition, the Group produces and distributes related products
including yeast extracts, bakery ingredients (including the
fats and oils businesses in South America) and vipegsr,

The Group operates 31 yeast, 2 yeast extract and 5 bakery
ingredient plants in 20 countries. Its distribution networks
supply products into a large number of additional markets.

Saleg decreased marginally due largety to the appreciation
of the Australian dollar versus the Argentine peso. Earnings
incregsed due to margin improvements, cost reduction
initiatives and capital productivity imprevements arising
from capital projects,

The dccrease in total assets was primarily duc to the
depreciation of the Argentine peso.

Comumnents on the performance by region follows:

Norti America

Fleischmann's, the Group’s North Amerncan yeast and bakery
ingredients operation, experienced a successful year with
trading EBIT improving by 20.8% aver last year before the
$25.1 million provision for the closure of the Oakland plant.
A full year benefit of the La Salle expansion project was
realised, prices firmed and other cost ¢utting measures took
effect, Volume in the consumer segment declined, however

Burns, Philp & Company Limited and its Controlled Entities  ~

the efficiency gain and cost reduction associated with the
La Salle expansion project increased the profitability of this
business. In March 2002 the Group closed its relatively high
cost yeast plant in Oakland, Califomia. This initiative will
make a positive contribution to profitability next year.

South America

The Group opcrates in Argentina, Brazil, Uruguay and
Chile, It manufactures and distributes yeast, bakery
ingredicats, fats and oils. Sales revenue in this region
wis down 25% on last year due to the devaluation of
the region’s currencies and in particular the Argentine
peso. The successful implementation of the Group's
tationalisation projects has gone a long way towards
offsctting the adverse economic conditions in the region.

Europe and Yeast Extracts

The overall results from the Group’s opcrations across
Europe were consistent with last year. Each business
performed in accordance with budget except Turkey which
suffered from difFicult economic conditions and intense
competition. The expansion of the Portuguese plant,

which iticluded the construction of a new yeast dryer,

was completed, The plant is producing high quality product
that is being consumed domestically and exported to the
US and into many other markets around the world including
North Africa. The plant is now running at full capacity

to meet demand. The Group's yeast extracts businesses
increased profits due to the capital investments and
increased productivity measures that were implemented
over the last two years,

Asia Pacific

Profit increased in most markets in this region and the
Group again improved its market positions. Further capacity
was added to our plants in Vietnam, China, Indonesia and
India. A new plant was acquired in Chiplun, India and a
small plant is under construction in Pakistan.

2002 Annual Report 7
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Managing Director’s Review of Operations (continued)

Vinegar

30 June 30 June
AS million 2002 2001 % Change
Sales 84.8 89.6 (5.4%)
Trading EBITDA 14,9 142 . 49%
Trading EBIT 10.9 9.5 14.7%
Total assets 83.9 82.4 ' 1.8%

Fleischmann’s Vinegar is the leading supplier of industrial
vinegar in North America. Sales in thus category werc lower
than last year primerily due to the Group’s exit from the
unprofitable consumer segment. Profit for the year was also
improved due to the exit frem the consumer segment and
margin improvements,

On 18 April 2002 the Group anncunced its intention to sell
this business, On 23 August 2002, subisequent to year end,
the Company entered into an agreement for the sale of the

Herbs and Spices

vinegar division to Swander Pace Capital L.L,C,, a US
based private equity investor, The anticipated proceeds
of the sale are approximately $88 million.

Completion of the sale is conditional on satisfaction of
usual ¢closing conditions, including the purchaser obtaining
finaneing for the ‘acquisition and certain third party
conscnts. It is anticipated that the sale will be completed
by the end of September 2002.

30 June 30 June
AS million 2002 2001 % Change
Sales 439.5 438.9 0.1%
Trading EBITDA (beforc Kmart USA. provision) 62.2 413 50.6%
Trading EBIT (before Kmart USA pravision) 54.7 333 64.3%
Kmart USA provision (10.1) - N/A
Trading EBITDA 52.1 413 26.1%
Trading EBIT 44.6 333 33.9%
Total assets 229.3 253.3 (9.5%)

Our hetbs and spices business primarily involves the
sourcing, grinding, blending, packaging and distribution
of herbs and spices products to both the foodservice and
consumer markets in the United States. We also sell cake
decorstions and dry sance mixes. We ¢perate from one site
located near Des Moines, Iowa.

We also operate a pcpper processing ficility in India
and, through 2 joint venture, a cassia processing facility
in Indonesia.

8 Burns, Philp & Company Limited wad its Controlled Entities -

Tone Brothers, Inc., the Group’s North American herb and
spice operation, recorded a significant increasc in profitability
despite a provision for amounts due from Kmart USA.

This increasc was achieved primacily as a result of margin
improvements and ¢fficiency gains in the operation.

2002 Annual Repotl
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Terminals and Bulk Storage

30 June 30 June
AS$ million 2002 2001 % Change
Sales 29.9 30.7 (2.6%)
Trading EBITDA 14.1 164 (14.0%)
Trading EBIT 7.9 11.2 (29.5%)
Total assets 54.3 49.5 9.7%

Sales at the Terminals and bulk storage business werce stable,
Significant costs were provided to reflect expected
remediation costs relating to the pending closure of part of
the Coode Island site.

On 18 Aptil 2002 the Group announced its intention to sell
this business. On 7 August 2002, subsequent to year end,

SUMMARY

Since 30 June 2001 the Group has:

- achicved 2 satisfactory eamings result, increasing
EBITDA (before significant items) from $261.9 million
to $294.5 million;

» realised the full year benefits of many of the projects
undertaken during the past two yesrs;

» restructured the terms, conditions and maturity of the
Group's debt, including the raising of US$400 million
Scnior Subordinated Notes, so that, after taking into
account the redemption of the outstanding Euroconvertible
Bonds, the earliest maturity is now 2006 with the
balance maturing in 2012;

+ raised additional equity;

« enteted into an agreement 1o sell the non core Terminals
businzss, subject to certain conditions;

Burns, Philp & Company Limited and its Controlled Entities -

the Group announced that it had entered into an agreement
to sell this business to subsidiaries of the Kaneb Pipe Line
Operating Partnetrship LP. Completion of the sale is
conditional on obtaining a number of third party consents.
It is anticipated that these consents will be obtained and the
sale completed prior to the end of September 2002.

« entered into an agreement to sell the non core Vinegar
business, subjcct to certain conditions; and

« entered into negotiations to acquirc Kraft’s South American
Fleischmann’s yeast and bakery ingredients business.

The Group’s balance sheet and liquidity position are strong
and its businesses have continued to perform satisfactorily.

A by

Thomas J Degnan
Managing Director
& Chief Executive Officer

2002 Annual Report 9
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Direcory Report |

Your Directors present their report mede in accordance with a resolution of the Directors with respect to the financial report
of Burns, Philp & Company Limited the Company) and the consolidated financial.report of the consclidated entity, being
the Company and its controlled entities (the Group) for the year ended 30 June 2002 and the audit repert thereon.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Compeny in office and each of their qualifications, experience and special responsibilities at the date

of this report are:

Name snd Qualifications Age

Experience and Special Responsibilitics

Alan McGregor AQ, MA(Hons), LLB 66

Graeme Hart MBA 47
Thomas Degnan BA 54
Mark Burrows BA, LLB, ASIA 58
Fred Smith Cert Mech E, BComm 70

Chairman. Appointed to the Board on 3 March 1993. Member of the
Audit Committee. A lawyer, Mr McGregor is Chairman of James Hardie
Industries N.V. and Australian Wool Testing Authority Limited, Fle is a
director of several unlisted companies and a board or committee member
of numerous cheritable and community-related organisations.

Deputy Chairman. Appointed to the Board on 22 September 1997,
Member of the Audit Committee, Mr Hart is the Managing Director
and owner of Rank Group Limited.

Appointed Chicf Executive Officer on 1 Scptember 1997 and Managing
Director on 3 September 1997.iMember of the Audit Committee for the
petiod to 30 June 2002, but resigned as 2 member on 14 August 2002.
Mr Degnan was previously Group Vice President, Universal Foods
Corporation, a North American based yeast and specialised foed
products rnanufacturer,

Appointed 1o the Board on 21 October 1991, Chairman of the Audit
Committee, An investmert banker, Mr Burrows is currently Deputy
Chairman of ING Barings Holdings Limited (UK) and Brambles

Industries Limited, and a director of John Fairfax Holdings Limited.

Appointed to the Board on 3 March 1993. Member of the
Audit Committee.

All of the Directors have been in office for the whole of the reporting period.

10 Burns, Philp & Company Limited and its Controlled Entities - 2002 Annual Repaort
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DIRECTORS® MEETINGS

Ig101o

The number of Directors’ meetings (Including meetings of committees of Directors) and mumber of Audit Committee meetings
attended by each of the Dircctors of the Company during the financial ycar were:

Directors’ Moeetings (b)

Sub-Committee Meeting (¢)

Audit Committee Meetings (d)

No. Held (a) WMo, Atcended No. Held (a) No. Attended No, Held (a) No. Attended
A G McGregor 7 7 - - 2 2
G R Hart 7 7 1 1 2 2
T J Degnan 7 7 1 1 2 2
M D I Burrows 7 7 - - 2 2
F W Smith 7 7 - - 2 2

(3) Reflects the muximum nunber of meetings cach Director was eligible to attend,
() 'n addition to thc meetings held, written revotutions of the Board of the Company were passed on 2 November 2001, 28 Febroary 2002 and 28 May 2002.

{c

~

Pricing Committee meeting to approve certain terma of the Senior Subordinated Notes.

(d) On 18 December 1997 it was deétermined that the full Board of the Company waould constitute the Audit Committec. On 14 Augrust 2002 the Bourd of
the Company tesolved that only non executive directors would constitute the Audit Committee. Mr Degnun resigned as a member of the Audit Commitice

on 14 August 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group during the finencial year
were the manufacture, marketing and Jdistribution of yeast
and bakery ingredicnts, herbs and spites, industrial vinegar
and the provision of terminalling and bulk storage facilities.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Managing Director’s review of operations and the
results of those operations for the financial year is set
out on pages 3 to 9 of this Annual Report.

STATE OF AFFAIRS

The following significant changes in the state of affairs of
the Group occurred during the financinl year under review:

In May 2001 the Group announced a proposal to raise
additional equity by the issue of approximately $107 million
converting prefcrence shares (CP Sharzs) in a rights issue
and a further $133 million CP Shares ns part repayment

for an offer to buy-back the outstanding $266 million

7.5% Notes (Equity Raising). The Equity Raising was
undertaken in conjunction with the refinancing of the
Group’s outstanding senior debt, In sutamary, the proposal
involved the following steps:

+ an agreement to ¢nter into a new five year tern finance
facility with lenders for US$425 million, the proceeds
of which were to be used primarily to refinance the
Group's existing senior debt;

- an agreement to enter into a US$23 million revolving
loan facility;

« raising approximately $240 million of new equity
through the issue of CP Shares: and

* an offer to buy-back approximately $266 miilion of the
outstanding 7.5% Notes, funded 50% by c¢ash and 50%
by the issue of CP Shares.

These transactions were completed on 13 August 2001.

In addition to the $240 million raised by the issue of CP
Shares, holders of approximately $261] million (98%) of
the 7.5% Notes outstanding accepted the buy-back offer.
The balance of the outstanding 7.5% Notes ($5.3 million)
was redeemed for cash on 2 October 2001.

USS$10 million of:the tetm loan facility has subsequently
been repaid in accordance with its terms. The revolving
loan facility remsins undrawn snd has subsequently been
reduced to US$10 million,

On 5 Junc 2002 the Group announced that it had entered
itito a preliminary agreement with Kraft Foods Intcrnational
Inc. to acquire its Fleischmann's yeast and bakery
ingredicnts business in Latin America,

On 21 June 2002 a subsidiary of Burns, Philp & Company
Limited, Burns Philp Capital Pty Limited, issued in a private
offering US$400 million of Senior Subordinated Notes that
bear intercst at 9,75% and mature on 15 July 2012, The
Company and a number of its subsidiaries have gusranteed
the obligations of the issuer of the Senior Subordinated
Notes (including with respect to the payment of principal
and interest).

Burns, Philp & Company Limited and its Controlled Entities ~ 2002 Annual Report n
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Directors’ Report (continued)

CONSOLIDATED RESULT

The net consolidated result attributable to members of the
Company for the financial year was a profit of $146.2 million.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE

Except as reported below, no matter or circumstance
has arisen since the end of the reporting period that has
significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the
Group's operations, the results of thos2 operations, or
its state of affairs in future financial y:ars.

As discussed above, on 21 June 2002 a subsidiary of
Burns, Philp & Company Limited, Bums Philp Capital

Pry Limited, issued in 2 private offering US$400 million of
Senior Subordinated Notes that bear {tterest at 9.75% and
mature on 15 July 2012. On 9 Augusi 2002 Burns, Philp &
Company Limited lodged with the Sevurities and Exchange
Commission in the United States, a Form F—4 Rcgistration
Statement for registration of an exchauge offer under which
the Senior Subordinated Notes issued on 21 June 2002 will
be exchanged for identical registered totes. [t is anticipated
that the Registration Statement will be declared cffective in
Novemnber 2002.

On 1 August 2002 Bums Philp Treaswy (Europe) BV
gave notice to the trustee and holders of the guaranieed
subordinated convertible debt bonds ([Debt Bonds) that

it would redeem, in accordance with their terms of

issue, all of the outstanding Debt Bondls (approximately
$180.0 million) on 9 Scptember 2002. Upon redemption
of the Debt Bonds on 9 September 20012, the Debt Bonds
and the attached Conversion Bonds ware cancelled,

On 7 Augusi 2002 the Company ¢ntered into an agreement
to sell the Terminals Division to subsidiaries of Kaneb Pipe
Line Operating Partnership LP for anticipated sale proceeds
of $83 million, Completion of the sale is conditional on
obtaining a number of third party consants. It is anticipated
that these consents will be obtained and the sale completed
prior to the end of September 2002.

On 23 August 2002 the Company entered into an agreement
for the sale of the Vinegar Division to Swander Pace Capital
L.L.C. for anticipatcd sale proceeds of $88 million. It is
anticipated that the sale will be complzted by the end of
September 2002,

DIVIDENDS

There have been no dividends paid, declared or recommended
since the end of the previous financial year in respect of the
ordinary shares, The CP Shares are entitled to receive,

12 Burns, Philp & Company Limited and its Controlled Entitics

where there ate profits available for payment of dividends,

a cumulative preferential dividend of 7.5% per annum based
on the issuc price of $0.30 per CP Share, Dividends are
paid quarterly. Since the end of the previous financial year,
the following interim dividends were paid to holders of the
CP Shares:

Payment Date Total Dividend 18} 4 Sharl:?:t:ir?tesl)-
2 October 2001 $2,507,793 0.31438
31 December 2001 54,424,469 0.55480
2 April 2002 $4,522,053 0.56710
1 July 2002 $4,423,953 0.55480
LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS

Likely developments in the Group’s operations in futurc
financial years and the expected results of those operations
arc reported as appropriate (refer Managing Dircctor’s

- review of operations),

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION
Introduction

All of the Group’s manufacturing operations are subject
to the environmental laws of the particular countries in
which they operate. The management of environmental
risks and complianee with environmental laws is regarded
as a key issue, The Company has locally based procedures
to monitor and manage compliance with existing and new
environmental regulations as they come into force,

The Directors are not aware of any significant breaches
of environmental regulations during the financial year.

Environmental Improvements

During the financial year the Group continued jts
program of environmental improvement initiatives at its
manufacturing locations world-wide. As in previous years,
the main area of focus was in improving wastcwater
treatment facilities at its ysast manufacturing operations.

Environmental Performance — Australian Operations
Burns Philp's Australian operations are principslly
in two areas:

* Bakers' yeast (two manufacturing sites (following
the closure of the South Yarra facility in July 2002),
one bulk distribution site and one technology and
development site),

= Terminalling and bulk storage facilities (four locations).
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All of these operations are subject to environmental
regulation, mainly undet State envirormmental faws. The
areas of regulation applicable include air emissions, water
and wastewater discharges, noise emissions, dangerous
goods storage and handling, solid and liquid waste disposal
and site contamination. All ¢ight operuting locations hold
licences from State environmental agencies with regard to
at least one of these issues.

During the period under review compliance with the
requirements of the relevant environmentel laws was
substantially achieved, There are ongoing environmental
issues ag specified below where appropriate corrective and
preventative actions are being taken to ensure cornpliance
with relevant statutory and licence requiretments.

Yeast Manufaciuring Operations

With respect to the yeast manufacturing operation located
in Sydney, the Company has agreed to enter into a voluntary
remedijation proposal with respect to s3il and groundwater
contamination at the site, The Compauyy is required to
submit a remediation proposal with respect to the site

by 18 November 2002,

Terminals

Botany Facility

Terminals was issued with a Penalty Tr.fringement Natice
in respect of a minor leak of oil from # hose at the Bulk
Liquids Berth, Port Botany. The EPA imposed a penalty
of $1,500 in respect of the spill.

Coode Island Facility

The activitics conducted at the Coode [sland facility
generate vapours which are required to be treated prior

to being released to the atmosphere. The Victorian EPA

has amended Terminals’ discharge licence. A new
combustion vapour emission control system (currently
under construction) to capture and treat these vapours is
being installed and will replace the current vapour cmission
control systern.

Terminals has submitted to the Victorian EPA a groundwater
management plan for the ongoing management of its Coode
Island west side groundwater, Terminals has also submitted
to the Victorian EPA a remediation action plan that outlines
the proposed remediation strategy for the Coode Island east
side which will be vacated by 31 July 2004.

Wwioly7

Environmental Performance — International

Burns Philp’s overseas operations are regulated by national
or state environmental laws which are administered by
relevant regulatory authorities.

Compliance with regulatory requirernents was substantially
achieved across zll operations. At some yecast manufacturing
operations wastewatet discharges do not meet local
standards but action plans are in place to address those
issues and there is an ongoing program of investment in
improved wastewater treatment systems across the Group.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
AND EXECUTIVES

Under Group policy the performance and remuneration
of the Board and senior executives are reviewed annually.
The Managing Director’s remmuneration is approved by the
Board. The fees paid to non executive Board members
are determined by the Board and are within the combined
amount appraoved by the shareholders of the Company in
Gencral Meeting on 19 November 1993.

The maximum amount of fees payable to non exccutive
Directors of Burns, Philp & Company Limited, in
aggregate, is $450,000 (exclusive of retircment payments).
For the year to 30iJun¢ 2002 the basic fce paid to a non
executive Director was $45,000, Additional fees were paid
to Mr A G MeGregor, Mr M D Burrows and Mr F W Smith
for theit participation on committees of the Board and/or
committees requiring Board representation. The Chairman
was paid theee times the basic fee, ie $135,000 plus
statutory supcrannuation contribution. The Deputy
Chairman, Mr G R Hart, did not receive a director’s

fee for the financial period.

Executive remuneration and other terms of employment
are reviewed annually by the Company having regard
to performance during the year, relevant cormparative
information and indcpendent expert advice, The broad
policy is to ¢nsure that remuncration packages properly
ceflect the nature of the individual’s dutics and
responsibilities and are competitive enough to attract,
retain and motivate people of the highest calibre.

Senior executives may receivc a performance based
incentive related 1o achicvernent of specific objectives set
at the start of the year, including profit achievement and
operational goals. Non executive Dircctors do not receive
any performance based remuncration,
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Directors® Report {continued)

Details of the nature and amount of each element of the emoluments of each Director of Burns, Philp & Company Limited are

as follows:
Base Incentives Non Cash Superannuation = Options Retirement Total

Emolument (a) Benefits  Contributions Issued (b) Benefits Emoluments
Directors AS AS AS AS AS AS AS$
Non executive
M D I Burrows 50,000 - - 4,000 - - 54,000
G R Hart - - - - - - -
A G McGregor 135,000 - - 10,800 - ~ 145,800
F W Smith 48,000 - - 3,840 - - 51.840
Executive
T J Degnan () 1,746,446 716,606 587,461 835,407 — - 3,885,920

{8) Incentives umounts are estimates only, as srsessment and payment of incentives for the year ended 30 June 2002 have not been completcd.

(b) No options aver unissucd shares in the Cortpany were granted to any Dite¢tors or any officers of the Bums Philp Group as part of their remuncration
during the reporting peried.

(¢) Remuncration ig payable in currcncics other than A$ and for the purposcs of disclosure have been ¢orverted at prevailing exchange rates,

Burns, Philp & Company Limited is the holding company of the Bumns Philp Group. Other than T J Degnan, whose
emoluments are disclosed abave, only four individuals qualify as “officcrs of Burns, Philp & Company Limited” for the
purposes of the Corporations Act 2001. Details of the nature and amount of each ¢lement of the emoluments of each of
the four most highly remunerated officers of Burns, Philp & Company Limited and of the five officers of the Burns Philp
Group recciving the highest emolumert sre as follows:

Basc Non Cash Superannusation Options Retirement Total
Executive Officers Emolument Tncentives (a) Benefits (d) Contributions Tssued (b) Benefits  Emoluments
(cxcluding Directors) AS$ AS A% AS AS$ AS AS
The Company
A P Hugli 355,000 88,750 27,308 - - - 471,058
H D Golding 240,000 67,500 42,105 30,000 - - 379,605
R Meagher 252,000 70,000 - 28,000 - - 350,000
G Black 158,409 41,000 45,191 41,167 - - 285,767
Consolidated
S Martin (c) 764,380 573,285 87,806 12,230 - - 1,437,701
T Lynch (<) 340,623 73,162 109,313 286,834 - - 809,932
F Schoonyoung () 584,523 138,544 76,369 - - - 799,436
O Devotto (¢) 483,756 - 47497 33,178 - - 564,431
F Wall (¢) 317,140 69,326 95,160 11,177 — — 492 803
{a) Incentives amounts are st only, as 1ent and payment of incentives for the year snded 3¢ June 2002 have not been completed.

(b} No options over unissued shares in the Conypany were granted to any Directors or any officers of the ‘Burns Philp Group =8 part of their remuneration
during the reporting period.

() Remuncration is payable in currencics other thun A$ and for the purposss of disclosure have been converted at prevailing exchatige rates.
(d) This includes movements in accrued annua) leave linbilitics from the previous financial year.
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OPTIONS OVER UNISSUED SHARES OR INTERESTS

The Company’s shareholders approved a recapitalisation
of the Company at Extraotdinary General Meetings held
in February 1998 and June 1999. The $300 million
recapitalisation plan involved the raising of $250 million
through a placement of 7.5% Notes arnd Options

{2003 Options) to the Company’s largest shareholders
and $50 million by way of a renounceable rights issue
of 7.53% Notes and 2003 Options 1o all shareholders,
The recapitalisation was completed in. December 1999.

Full details rclating to the issue of the 2003 Options
referred to above are set out in note 17 of the finaneial
statements, together with information regarding other

{ARORRS]

options issued by the Company over unissued shares or
interests in the Company. The 2003 Options are freely
tradeable and are quoted on the Australian Stock Exchange
Limited (ASX) under the code “BPCO”".

As at 22 August 2002 the number of unissued ordinary
shares under option was 1,229,474,922. As the 2003
Options can be exercised at any time prior to $.00 pm on
14 August 2003, the number of unissued ordinary shares
under option as at the date of this report may vary from
that on issue as at 22 August 2002, As at 22 August 2002,
66,802 ordinary shares had been issued since 30 June 2002
as g result of the exercisc of the 2003 options,

DIRECTORS’ HOLDINGS OF ORDINARY SHARES, CP SHARES AND 2003 OPTIONS

The number of ordinary shares, CP Shares and 2003 Options in which each Director has a relevant interest as at the date of
this report and which have been notifi:d by the Directors to the ASX in accordance with Section 205G(1) of the Corporations

Act 2001 is as follows:

Ordinary Shares CP Shares 2003 Options
A G McGregor 10,000 56,226 104,608
G R Hart 105,542,326 §37,644 211 986,128,775
T J Degnan 1,800,000 619,122 691,050
M D [ Burrows 4,000 — 1,843
F W Smith 9,394 5,779 4,329

DIRECTORS*' BENEFITS UNDER CONTRACTS

Details of benefits received by Directors of the Company
are disclosed in note 27 of the financial staternents. These
include reimbursement of salaries and expenses to Rank
Group Limited of which Mr G R Hart is Managing Director.

Contracts under which a Director, or 2 firm in which a
Director {s a member or a comnpany in which a Director
has a substantial financial interest, has received or become
entitled to receive a benefit, are as follows:

1. Following Mr T I Degnan’s relocation to the United
States in January 2002, a subsidiary of the Company,
Burns Philp Inc., entered into an Emnployment
Agreement with Mr T I Degnan in relation to his
appeintment as Managing Dircctor and President of
Butns Philp Inc, The terms of the agreement are similar
to those generally associated with such offices. All
benefits paid and potentislly payable with respect

' to the financial year to 30 Junc 2002 pursuant to the
agreement and the previous Employment Agreement
with the Company, which terminated on 31 January
2002 (including an entitlement to a service payment

in recognition of Mr Degnan'’s services to the Group
since 1 September 1997) have been disclosed on pages
13 and 14 of this Directors’ Report and in the financial
statements.

In accordance with the terms of his Employment
Agreement, Mr Degnan will be entitled to a change of
controlling sharcholder payment in the form of a lump
sum equal to approximately twice his annual base salary,
maximum bonus and car allowance if Mr G R Hart
ceases to be the controlling shareholder of the Company
on a fully diluted basis,

2. In July 1997 the Company entercd into a Dijrector’s
Access Deed with each of Messrs M D [ Burrows, F'W
Smith, A G M¢Gregor and 4 others who were Directors
of the Company at that time (each a beneficiary)
whereby the Company agreed to provide access to board
papers and to use its best endeavours to take out and
maintain directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in
relation to the period during which the beneficiary was
a Director of the Company, for a period of 7 ycars after
the date of resignation of the beneficiary as Director,
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Dircctors® Report (continued)

The Company agreed to pay premiums in respect of
such insurance. Many of the Company's obligations
as cxpressed in these Deeds are now provided by the
Corporations Act 2001,

3. Each of the Directors holds ordinary shares, 2003
Options and CP Shares as detailed on page 15 of this
teport. The 2003 Options are goveined by a Notes Trust
Deed dated 11 August 1998 and each of them will
participate in benefits which they ére entitled to reccive
as a resylt of holding the 2003 Options in accordance
with the Notes Trust Deed. The CP Shares have certain
nights attached to them, as set out in the Statement of
Terms of Issue of CP Shares approved by sharcholders
at an Extraordinary General Meetitig of the Company
held en 15 June 2001, Ordinary shares have the rights
attached to them as set out in the Company’s
Constitution and in the Corporations Act 2001,

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE
OF OFFICERS

Company’s Constitution

The Company’s Constitution permits the: Directors to authorise
the Company to indemnify certain officers of the Company
or any of its related body corporates, to the extent permitied
by law, for liability incurred as an officer provided that:

« the liability is not owed to the Company or a related
body corpotate; or

= the liability is not for a peouniary penalty or compensation
order made by a court under the Corporations Act; and

» the liability does not arise out of conduct invelving
a lack of good faith.

The Company’s constitution also permuts the Dircctors to
authorise the Company to indemnity ¢nch officer, 1o the
maximum cxtent permitted by law, for legal costs and
expenses incurred in successfully defending civil or
criminal proceedings.

Indemnities

1. By a Deed Poll dated 5 November 2001 the Company
agreed to indernnify the current Directors, secretaries
and chief financial officer of the Company in the
circumstances authorised by the Cermpany’s Constitution.

2. By a Deed Poll dated 18 December 1997 (as amended
on 3 November 2000) the Company agreed to indemnify
cach director and company secretary (Indemmnified
Party) from time to time of a subsidiary of the Company

16 Burns, Philp & Company Limited and its Conitrelied Entities

against any liibility incurred on or after 15 April 1995
and prior to 13 March 2000 to any person {other than a
subsidiary or a related body corporate ofthe Company)
as a result of having served as a director, secretary or
employee of a subsidiary. The indemnity;

(a) does not apply to liability arising out of ¢conduct
involving lack of good faith, conduct known to be
wrongful, or personal marters such as travel to and
from work: and

(b) extends to costs and expenses incurrcd in
successfully defending civil or criminal proceedings
or in connection with an application in relation to
such proceedings in which relief is granted under
the Corporations Act 2001.

In accordance with amendments tnade to the Corporations
Act 2001, the Dced Poll was amended on 3 November
2000 so that, from 13 March 2000, the Company
indemnified each Indemnified Party to the maximum
cxtent provided by law in respect of a liability incurred
on or after 13 March 2000 as a result of facts or
circumstances relating to the Indemnified Party serving
or having served as a director or sectetary or employee
of any subsidiarics of the Company.

The Company also agreed for a period of 6 ycars

aftcr a person ceases to be a dlirector or sceretary of a
subsidiary, to maintain directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance, if available, on termns that require no materially
greater cost to the Company than as at the date of the
Deéed. The Company agreed to pay premiums in respect
of the insurance, except premiums in respect of insurance
cover against liability arising out of breach of duty, or
other liability in respect of which the Company is
prohibited from paying premiums by law.

. On 29 July 1997 the Company entered into & Deed of

Release with Mr 1 D Clack (a farmer Ditector of the
Company) under which the Company agrced:

(2) to maintain or obtain directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance for the bencfit of Mr Clack at the current
level of benefit for any liability arising out of his
service as un employee and Director of the Company
and any of its subsidiaries, partnerships or joint
ventures; and

(b) that Mr Clack would be paid certain amounts of
money in respect of his ceasing to be a Director
and employee of the Company, including relocation
expenses if required.
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If the Company caanot effect insurance in the terms

of the Decd, it has agreed to indemnify Mr Clack to

the same extent 85 he was indemnified at the date of the
Deed by existing directors’ and offficers” insurance. The
Company’s directors’ and officers" liability insurance
palicy covers the period during which Mr Clack was

an officer of the Company.

. By letter dated 8 August 1997 the Company agreed,

to the extent permissible by law, to indemnify Mr 1 D
Clack in respect of ligbilitics he may have incurred in
the proper performance of his employment as an officer
of the Company and to release him from any claims it
might otherwise be able to make against himn (except for
misappropriation of Company property or lack of good
faith) in respect of conduct undertaken by Mr Clack in
the proper course of his employment and within the
lirnits of his authority.

. Under a2 number of Deeds of Indeinnity dated

23 December 1993 a Group compiny indemnified the
Directors of the Company as at that date (being Messrs
W R M Irvine, D J Docherty, A G McGregor, M D |
Burrows, F W Smith, I D Clack, { M Cowling and A
Turnbull) and certain former senior Group ¢xccutives for
all liabilities arising from claims made by third parties
under United States of America securities laws as a
consequence of any action or statement made in relation
to the Company's securities traded through the American
Depositary Receipts system, except where the liability
arises out of conduct invelving a lack of good faith,

. Under a number of Deeds dated 19 August 1993 the
Company aud certsin Group comyanies indemnified

Mr I D Clack and three senior Group executives for ail
claims made under United States of America securities
laws by third parties as a consequence of any action in
their capacity as directors of Nutrition 21, Inc. (formerly
AMBI Inc., an associated company at 30 June 1997),
except where the liability arises out of conduct ittvolving
a lack of good faith. All of the bereficiarics of the Deed
have ceased to be directors of this company.

Burns, Phllp & Company Limited and its Controlled Entities -

The Company has not been advised of any claims under any
of the above indemmnities.

Insurance

During the financial year the Company agrecd to pay, and
has paid, insurance premiums in respect of a directors’ and
officers' liability insurance contract. The officers covered
by the insurance policy are:

« the current and former executive officers of the
Company and the current and former directors,
secretaries and executive officers of its subsidiaries;

« the current Directors of the Company, being Messrs
A G McGregor, T J Degnan, G R Hart, M D | Burrows
and F W Smith;

+ the current secretary of the Company, Ms H D Gelding,
and the additional secretary, Mr P J P West; and

» the former Directors of the Company.

Disclosure of the amount of the premium and of the
liabilities covered is prohibited under the insurance contract,

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

Burns, Philp & Company Limited is a company of the kind
referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998 and
in accordance with that Class Order amnounts in the financisl
report and in this Directors’ Report have been roundcd to the
nearest tenth of a million dollars, unless otherwise shown,

This report has been made in accordance with a rcsolution
of the Directors,

bersr

Thomas J Degnan
Managing Director

Sydney, 10 September 2002
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I
Corporate Gover

The following are the main corporate govermance practices in
place throughout the financial period, unless otherwise stated:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND IT# COMMITTEES

The Board is responsible for the overa]l corporate governance
of the Group, including its strategic direction and ensuring
that there are appropriate corporate governance practices

in placc. This includcs the setting of goals, monitoring
performance and ensuring the Group's internal control

and reporting procedures arc adequate and cffective,

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The names of the Directors of the Corupany in office at the
date of this statement are set out in the Directors’ Report
on page 10 of this report,

The Board comprises a majority of individuals who are
independent non executive Directors. The Company’s
Constitution requires the retirement of Directors (other than
the Managing Director) on a three year basis. Retiring
Directors may offer themselves for re-election by the members,

INDEPENDENT PROFESSIONAL ADVICE

All of the Dircetors may, in the furtherance of their duties,
obtain independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board's Audit Cornmittee has beeri made up of all

the Directors sincc 18 December 1997. Meetings are also
attended from time to time, by invitaticn, by the Company
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer and the ¢xternal auditor,
KPMG. On 14 August 2002 the Board of Directors of the
Company resolved that only non executive directors would
constitute the Audit Comnittee.

The business covered by the Audit Committee is governed
by a charter approved by the Board.

The primary function of the Audit Committee is to provide
advice to the Board in respect of:

» the reliability and integrity of accounting policies
and financial reporting and disclostire practices;

+ the establishment and maintenance of processes to
ensure that there is compliance with all applicable
laws, regulations and company policy; and

= intermal control systerns, management of business risks
and the safeguard of assets.

18 Burns. Philp & Company Limited und its Controlicd Entiries

These functions ace carried out by;

* reviewing the sppropriateness of the accounting
principles adopted by inanagement in the composition
and presentation of financial reports; and

« overseeing the financial reports and the tesults
of the external audits of these reports.

The external auditor is responsible for planning and
carrying out a proper audit of the Group's annual financial
reports including reviews of the Group's six monthly
financial reports and other procedures.

The Audit Committee also reviews the appointment,
performance and rotation of the external auditor and whether
the non audit services provided by the exteraal auditor are
consistent with the external auditor's independence.

The role of the Audit Committee is documented in a Charter
which was updated and approved by the Board of Directors
of the Company on 10 September 2002. In accordance with
this new Charter all members of the Committee must

be non executive directors, The Chairman of the Audit
Committee may not be the Chairman of the Board of
Directors. The Audit Committee will conduct an annual
review of its owti processes and Chatter to ensure that

it has carried out jts functions in an effective manner,

The Charter is available to members on request.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The external auditor was gppointed on 27 November 1984.
The lcad external audit engagement partner was last
¢hanged in June 2000.

The Audit Committee intends, in relation to the 2003
financial reporting period, to meet with the external auditor
at least twice without management being present. The
external auditor will also be provided with the opportunity,
at jts requcst, to meet with the Board of Directors without
fnanagement being present.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEES

These include a general management committee which
reviews strategy and business performance and a capital
expenditure comtnittee.

20002 Annual Report
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INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the
overall internal control framework bul recognises that no
cost effective internal control systemn will preclude all errors
and irregularities, The following intemal control framework
is in place:

Financial Monitoring and Reporting

The Group has a comprehensive stratzgic planning and
budgeting system, the results of which. arc presented to
and approved by the Board. Managenment and the Board
monitor performance against budget and key financial
benchmarks through monthly reporting routines and
detailed business reviews.

Risk Management

The Group has designed manegement functions which
include financc, legal, taxation, environmental and human
resources that work closely with operational and executive
management in identifying and menaging business risk.

‘The Group has implemecnted globalised insurance
arrangements with major intermational insurers which
evaluate the economic balance between self-retention

of risks and risk transfer; the establishing, upgrading and
monitaring of compliance with the Group's risk management
standards; and the development of contingency plans to
menage potential business interruptions.

Internal Controls

Management assumes the primary responsibility for internal
controls and takes responsibility for their internal control
environment,

ETHICAL STANDARDS

All directors, managers and employees arc expected to act
with the utmost integrity 5o as to enhance the reputation

for fair and reasonable conduct of the Group, The Group
provides guidance to managers and ergployees through code
of conduct policies.

g o23

DIRECTOR DEALINGS IN COMPANY SECURITIES

Company policy prohibits directors and senior managcment
from dealing in Company securities:

+ except during the one month period following the release
of the Company's quarterly, half yearly or final results; or

+ while in the possession of price sensitive information.

Directors must obtaia the approval of the Chairman (or in
the case of the Chairman, the Deputy Chairman) before
they buy or sell securities of the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of the Corporations Act
200] and the Listing Rules of the ASX, Directors advise the
ASX of any transactions conducted by them in the securities
of the Company.

EMPLOYEE SHARE AND SHARE OPTION PLANS

"The Group has in‘place emplayee and exccutive share plans
and an incentive share option plan (full details of which are
set out in notc 17:of the financial statements). No shares
have been issued or loans made undet the share plans nor
any options issued under the incentive plan since 1997,
The remaining options issued under the incentive plan
were issued at an cxercise price of $1.02 and expire on

| Octaber 2002. There is no present intentjon to make any
further loans or issue any further options under such plans.

EQUAL ACCESS TO MATERIAL INFORMATION

The Company has a policy that all shareholders and
investors have equal access to the Company's information
and has procedures to ensure that all price sensitive
information is disclosed to the ASX in accordance with the
continuous disclosure requirements of the Corporations Act
2001 and ASX Listing Rules, All information provided to
the ASX is immediately posted to the Company’s website.
The Company Secretary is responsible for gll commumnications
with the ASX in relation to listing rule matters,

Burns, Philp & Compuny Limited and jts Controlled Entities — 2002 Anoual Report 19




12/09 '02 THU 10:14 FAX gjoz4

Shareholder Infor Im

Additional information required by the Australian Stock Exchange Limited Listing Rules and not disclosed elsewhere in this
teport follows:

SHAREHOLDINGS
Substantial shareholders
As at 22 August 2002 the following substantial sharcholdings had been advised to the Company:

Ordinary Shares

Burns, Philp & Company Limited Associates (a) 107,656,272
Rank Group Ltd (b) 105,542,326
Perpetual Trustees Australia Limited 79,767,898
Deutsche Australia Ltd 57,498,228
The Capital Group Companies, Inc. 47,850,000
Commonwealth Bank of Australia 35,439,202

(a) Burns, Philp & Company Limited <loes not hold any shares in itself, These holdings represent the aggregate sharcholdings
of all associates of the Cempany for the purposes of notification of a substantial shareholding pursuant to Section 671
of the Corporations Act 2001 and include, inter alia, shareholdings of directors and secretaries of the parent company
and all of its controlled entities and associates. The holding of Rank Group Limited (Rank) is also included as Rank
is an associate of Burns, Philp & Compeny Limited for these purposes.

(b) This includes holdings in the names of Millstreet Investments Ltd and Kintron Developments Ltd.

Number of holders of each class of equity security
As at 22 Aungust 2002 the number of holders of each class of equity security was as follows:

Ordinary Shares CP Shares 2003 Options Employee Options Convertible Bonds
26,743 8,982 6,693 23 1

Sec note 17 of the financial statements for an esplanation of terms used.

These numbers are the number of holdets ag shovn on the relevant register. Beneficial holdings may differ,

Voting rights
The voting rights attaching to the ordinary shares are Holders of CP Shares have the right to attend but no right
sct out in Article 56 of the Company’s Constitution. In to vote at members’ meetings.

summary, that article provides that cvery member present
or represented at members’ meetings shall have one vote
on a show of hands and upon a poll shzll have one vote

for each fully paid ordinary sharc held.

No rights to attend and vote at members® meetings attach
to the 2003 Options, the Employee Options or the
Convertible Bonds.
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Distribution of holders of each class of equity security
As at 22 August 2002 the distribution of holders of each class of equity security was as follows:

Ordinary 2003 Employee Convertible
Shares CP Shares Options Options Bonds
1 - 1,000 6,708 3,815 2,145 1 —
1,001 — 5,000 10,163 3,175 2,294 20 -
5,001 — 10,000 4,721 914 776 2 -
10,001 — 100,000 4,841 944 1,299 - 1
100,001 — and over 310 134 179 = -

Holding less than a markctable parcel
The number of shareholders holding less than a marketable parcel of ordinary shares as at 22 August 2002 was 4,745.

Twenty largest holders of ordinary shares at 22 August 2002

Number of Ordinary % of Ordinary

Shares Held Shares Held
Westpac Custodian Nominees Ltd 86,781,136 10.81
Millstreet Investments Ltd 78,163,638 9.74
RBC Global Services Australia Nominees Pty Ltd (Pipooled A/c) 64,239,157 8.00
National Nominees Ltd 40,201,214 5.01
JP Morgan Nominees Australia Ltd 37,980,281 4.73
Commonwealth Custodial Services Licl 36,285,373 4.52
Kintron Developments Ltd 27,378,688 341
RBC Global Services Australia Nominees Pty Ltd (RA A/c) 20,529,355 2.56
Queensland Investment Corporation 13,330,145 1.66
RBC Global Services Australia Nominces Pty Ltd (PLIC A/c) 10,679,814 1.33
MLC Lid 10,238,546 1.28
Calex Nominees Pty Ltd 9,009,979 1.12
ANZ Nominees Ltd 8,876,457 1.11
Citicorp Nominees Pty Ltd 5,927,137 0.74
RBC Global Services Australia Nominees Pty Ltd (AX A/c) 5,391,200 0.67
Cullen Investments Ltd 5,096,517 0.63
Cogent Nominees Pty Ltd 4,615,165 0.57
Tower Trust (NSW) Ltd 4,323,435 0.54
UBS Warburg Private Clients Nominees Pty Ltd 4,221,541 0.53
Permanent Trustee Australia Ltd 4,025,000 ‘ 0.50
Total 477,293,778 59.46
Total issued ordinary shares at 22 Augnst 2002 802,753,994

* As shown on the register, beneficial holdings raay differ.,

At 22 August 2002 the Company had 26,743 ordinary shareholders of which the 20 largest holders held 477.3 million of the
approximately 802.8 million ordinary shares on issue. There arc 23,981 ordinary shareholders with registered addresses in
Australia, 2,386 in New Zealand and 376 registered clsewhere, mostly in the United:Kingdom and North America.
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Shareholder Information (continu:d)

Twenty largest holders of CP shares at 22 August 2002*

Number of CP % of CP

‘ Shares Held Shares Held
Kintron Developments Ltd 507,615,601 63.66
RBC Global Services Australia Nominees Pty Ltd (Pipooled A/c) 66,195,891 8.30
Millstreet Investrnents Ltd 30,028,610 3.77
JP Morgan Nominees Australia Ltd 18,560,711 2.33
Cullen Investments Ltd 12,053,633 1.51
RBC Global Serviccs Australia Nominees Pty Ltd (PIIC A/c) 11,656,882 1.46
Nationa] Nominces Ltd 11,313,652 1.42
RBC Global Services Australia Nominees Pty Ltd (RA A/c) 8,987,453 1.13
RBC Global Services Australia Nominees Pty Ltd (AX A/c) 8,100,456 1.02
CSFB Fourth Nominees Pty Ltd 7,328,701 0.92
Commonwealth Custodial Scrvices L 4,979,614 0.62
Queensland Investment Corporation 4,334,843 0.54
Westpac Custodian Nominees Ltd 4,038,081 0.51
Invia Custodian Pty Ltd (WAM Equity Fund A/c) 3,921,077 0.49
Tamrof Investments 3,268,580 0.41
Equipart Nominces Pty Ltd 3,182,578 0.40
Tower Trust (NSW) Ltd 2,954,488 0.37
Watnford Nominees Pty Ltd 2,526,956 032
Government Superannuation Office 2,493,883 0.31
Invia Custodian Pty Ltd (WAM Capital Ltd A/c) 2,293,799 0.29
Total 715,835,489 89.77
Total issued CP Shares at 22 August 2002 797,394,567

* As shown on the register, beneficial holdings may differ.

At 22 August 2002 the Company had 8,982 CP shareholders of which the 20 largest-holders held 715.8 million of the
approximatcly 797.4 million CP Shares on issue, There are 7,986 CP sharcholders with registercd addresses in Australia,
975 in New Zealand and 21 registered slsewhere.
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Twenty largest holders of 2003 Options at 22 August 2002"

Number of % of
Options Held Options Held

Kintron Developments Ltd 950,118,786 77.28
Millstreet Investments Lid 36,009,989 2.93
TP Morgan Nominees Australia Ltd 23,255,358 1.89
Queensland Investment Corpocation 11,814,768 0.96
CSFB Fourth Neminees Pty Ltd 9,636,310 0.78
Cullen Investments Ltd 9,613,574 0.78
Westpac Custodian Nominees Ltd 8,193,272 0.67
Elise Nominees Pty Ltd 7,604,616 0.62
RBC Global Services Australia Nomiisiees Pty Ltd (Pipooled A/c) 7,292,239 0.59
AMP Life Limited 5,682,362 046
Permanent Trustee Australia Ltd 5,278,010 0.43
Kzle Capital Corporation Ltd 5,180,000 042
National Nominces Lid 5,067,663 041
Tower Trust (NSW) Lid 4,253,853 0.35
Government Superannuation Office 3,617,145 0.29
RBC Global Services Australia Nominees Pty Ltd (RA A/c) 3,539,313 0.29
Permanent Trustee Australia Ltd 2,671,824 0.22
Victorian Workcover Autharijty 2,671,816 0.22
Commonwealth Custodian Services Ltd 2,601314 0.21
Cogent Nominces Pty Ltd 2,480,623 0.20
Total 1,106,582,835 90.01
Total issued quoted options (2003 Options) at 22 August 2002 1,229,474,922

* As shovn on the register, beneficial holdinygs nay ditfer.

At 22 August 2002 the Company had 6,693 holders of the 2003 Options of which the 20 largest holders held 1,106,6 million
of the approximately 1,229.5 million 2003 Options on issue. There are 5,905 holders of 2003 Options with registered
addresses in Australia, 761 in Ncw Zezland and 27 registered elsewhere,

Burns, Philp & Company Limited and its Contrelled Entities — 2002 Aunual Report 23

gro27




12709 '02 THU 10:15 FAX

Shareholder Information (continue)

ENQUIRIES

Securityholders seeking information on their secarity
holdings should contact the registrar, ASX Perpetual
Registrars Limited, Level 8, 580 George Street, Sydney
NSW 2000, telephione (02) 8280 7127, international

61 2 8280 7127, facsimile (02) 9261 8489, international
61 2 9261 8489, email registrars@asxpzrpetual.com.au
or via the registrar’s website www,asxperpetual.com.au.

All enquiries must include your Securityholder Reference
Number (SRN) or Holder Identification Number (HIN).
Your SRN or HIN is tecorded on most documents
forwarded to you including your holding statement,
CIHESS statement and proxy form. :

TAX FILE NUMBER INFORMATION

The Company is obliged to record Tax File Nunber

or exemption details provided by Austinlian resident
shareholders. While it is not compulsory to provide your

Tax File Number or exemption details, the Company is
obliged to deduct tax at the top marginal income tax rate plus
Medicare levy from unfranked dividends paid to shareholders
tesident in Australia who have not supplied thiz information.
For sharcholders who have not provided this information,
forms arc available upon request from our registrar.

24 Burns, Philp & Company Limited and its Controlled Entities

CHANGE OF ADDRESS

Please advise the registrar in writing if you have a new
postal address.

AMERICAN DEPOSITARY RECEIPTS

In the United States, the Company's shares are traded

on the over-the-counter market in the form of sponsored
American Depogitary Receipts (ADR). Each ADR
represents six Burns Philp ordinary shares. Enquiries
about ADRs should be made to the depository, JP Morgan
Chase Bank. '

BURNS PHILP COMMUNICATIONS

The annual report is the main source of information

for shareholders. All announcements made to the ASX

are available for viewing on the Company's website
www.burnsphilp.com. You can subscribe via our registrar’s
website www.asxperpetual.com.au to receive email
notification of the Company’s major anneuncements,

Shareholders not wishing to receive annual reports
should advise the share registry in writing or via our
registrar’s website,

2002 Annual Report
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OFFICES AND OFFICERS
Company Secretaries
Ms Helen Golding

Mr Philip West

Registered Office
Level 2, 44 Martin Placc

Sydney NSW 2000

Telephone: +61 2 9227 9333

Facsimile: +61 29223 1234

Email: shareholder.enquiries@bumsphilp.com

Website: www.bumsphilp.com

Stock Exchange Listings

Ordinary Shares:

Australian Stock Exchange Limited, Sydney
(Home Exchange)

New Zealand Stock Exchange

CP Shares and 2003 Options:
Australian Stock Exchange Limited, Syydney

Location of Registries
Ordinary Shares, CP Shares and 2003 Options:
ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited

Level 8, S80 George Street

Sydney NSW 2000

(Locked Bag A14

Sydney South NSW 1232)

Telephone: +61 2 8280 7127

Facsimile: +61 2 9261 8489

Email: registrars@asxperpetual.com.au

Website;  www.asxperpetual.com.au

Employee Options:
Level 2, 44 Martin Place

Sydney NSW 2000
Telophone: +61 2'9227 9333
Facsimile: +61 2:9223 1234

American Depusitary Receipis:
JP Morgan Chase:Bank

60 Wall Street

New York NY 10260 USA
Telephone: + | 212 648 3250
Facsimile: + 1212 648 5104

Burns, Philp & Company Limited and lts Controlled Entities — 2002 Annual Report

25

[dozse




1208 "02 THU 10:18 FAX
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Statements of Fin

ncial Performance

For the year ended 30 June

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited

AS million Note 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
Revenue from sale of goods 2 1,361.7 1,390.9 1,256.2 - -
Cost of goods sold (730.5) (784.5) (693.2) - —
Gross profit 631.2 606.4 563.0 - -
Revenue from rendering of services 2 299 30.7 30.1 - -
Other revenues from ordinary activities 2 6.4 18.9 7.4 20.7 11.1
Share of net profits of associates accounted
for using the equity method 10 10.1 124 11.6 - -
Selling, marketing and distribution expenses (319.8) (345.6) (318.9) - -
General and administrative expenses (135.8) (137.%) (119.3) (16.7) (14.3)
Net interest expense:

Borrowing costs 3 (72.9) (95.8) {90.9) (0.1) (1.2)

Intcrest revenue 2 7.0 13.0 9.9 9.3 0.6
Individually significant items 4 (35.2) - 52 - —
Profit/(loss) from ordinary activities before
related income tax benefit/(expense) 3 120.9 102.6 9%.1 13.2 (3.8)
Income tax benefit/(expense) relating
to ordinary activities:

Income tax (expense)/benefit before individually

significant income tax item 5 (19.3) (12.1) (14.4) 3.7 (0.3)

Individually significant income tax benefit 5 479 — - - —
Profit/(loss) from ordinary activities after related
income tax benefit/(expense) 1495 90’5 83,7 16.9 4.1
Profit attributable to outside equity interests 20 (3.3) (2.0) (1.5) - —
Net profit/(loss) attributable to Burms, Philp
& Company Limited shareholders 19 146.2 88!s 82,2 16.9 (4.1)
Non owner transaction changes in eguity
Net exchange difference relating to
sclf-sustaining foreign operations 18(a) (177.0) 210 14.9 - -
Decrease in asset revaluation reserve 18(a) - — (2.3) - =
Total revenues, expenses and valuation
adjustments attributable to Bums, Philp
& Company Limited shareholders recogniscd _
directly in equity (177.0) 21.0 12.6 — —
Total changes in equity from non owner related
transactions attributable to Burns, Fhilp
& Company Limited sharcholders 21 (30.8) 1095 94.8 16.9 (4.1)
Eamings per share — basic (cents) 26 17.3 13.6 15.4
Eamings per share - diluted {cents) 26 6.3 6.0 7.2

The attached notes formn part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Fi j

As at 30 June

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
AS million Note 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
Current assets
Cash asscts 6 923.6 2182 188.9 21.0 -
Receivables 7 160.4 2299 190.7 2543 449
Inventories 8 123.1 132.7 119.8 - -
Other assets 9 27.9 329 21.2 — 0.4
Total currcnt assets 1,235.0 613.7 520.6 2783 453
Non current assets
Receivables 7 1.8 4% 1.0 - -
Investments accounted for using the equity method 10 58.6 66.9 58.1 - -
Other financial assets 1" 6.7 7.6 7.6 132.9 160.0
Property, plant and cquipment 12 577.2 704:} 615.9 0.1 02
Intangible assets 13 3194 4075 355.0 - -
Deferrcd tax assets b} 66.2 55 59 - -
Other assets 9 99,6 50.6 32.6 — 1.2
Total non current assets 1,129.5 1,247 1 1,076.1 133.0 161.4
Total assets, 2,364.5 1,860:8 1,596.7 408.3 206.7
Current liabilities :
Payables 14 142.5 174.7 154.4 6.8 472
Interest bearing liabilities 15 205.8 282.8 27.7 - 0.4
Current tax liabilities 5 9.9 8.8 7.6 0.1 -
Provisions 16 385 443 50.8 6.2 6.1
Total currcnt liabilities 396.7 510.6 240.5 13.1 53.7
Non current liabilities
Payables 14 s - - - -
Interest bearing liabilities 15 1,449.7 1,028.9 1,192.6 — 13.5
Deferred tax liabilities 5 12.0 20.2 17.5 - —
Provisions 16 23.1 23.2 16.5 0.5 0.4
Total non current liabilities 1,488.3 1,072.3 1,226.6 0.5 13.9
Total liabilities 1,885.0 1,582.9 1,467.1 13.6 67.6
Net assets 479.5 277.9 129.6 394.7 139.1
Equity
Contributed equity 17 868.3 6137 581.5 868.3 613.7
Reserves 18 (159.2) 17.8 32) 18.2 182
Accumulated losses 19 (248.5) (378.8) (467.3) (491.8) (492.8)
Equity attributable to Burns, Philp
& Company Limited sharcholders 460.6 2527 111.0 394.7 139.1
OQutside equity interests 20 18.9 25.2 18.6 — -
Total equity 21 479.5 277.9 129.6 394.7 139.1

The attached notes form part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended 30 June

Statements of Cajh Flows |

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts in the course of operations 1,404.2 1,409.6 1.2824 4.7 11.1
Cash payments in the course of operations (1,133.1) (1,207.7) (1,047.3) (18.3) (14.9)
Interest received 6.8 129 9.8 9.3 0.6
Borrowing costs paid (63.5) (95.1) (91.4) (0.1) (1.2)
Dividends received from associates 153 8.6 7.8 - -
Dividends received from controlled entities - - - 16.0 -
Income taxes paid (16.6) (9:9) (9.2) (0.2) (0.3)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (b) 213.1 1184 152.1 11.4 4.7)
Cash flows from investing activities
Psyments for property, plant and equipment (82.3) (88:8) (38.2) - (0.1}
Payments for other financial assets 3.0 - - - -
Payments for businesses (¢) (22.5) (1119) - - -
Equity contributed to a controlled entity - - - (2.0) (30.0)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and cquipment 23 23 2.5 - -
Proceeds from disposal of businesses, net of cash disposed of (¢) 0.7 89 5.2 - -
Procceds from liquidation of controlled entities - - - 29.1 -
Other (1.0) (0.3) 2.4) — -
Net cash (used in)/provided by invesling activites (105.8) (89.8) (32.9) 27.1 (30.1)
Cash flows from financing activities (e)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares. 20.2 322 1.6 202 322
Proceeds from issue of CP Shares (d) 104.0 - - 104.0 ~
[ssue of 7.5% Notes and 2003 Options to shareholders - - 98.5 - -
Repayment of 7.5% Notes (d) (135.8) - - - -
Repayment of barrowings — Override Agreement (f) (835.0) (49.1) (119.7) (13.8) (0.2)
Drawdown of borrowings — New Credit Facility (f) 822.8 - - - -
Repayment of borrowings — New Credit Facility 9.7) - - - -
Repayment of other borrowings 34 - - - -
Issue of Senior Subordinated Notes (g) 697.5 - - - -
Buy-back of Debt Bonds (h) (2.6) - - - -
Refinancing costs paid (20.3) - - - -
Debt issue costs paid (18.3) - - - -
(Loans to)/repayment of loans by controlled entities - - - (114.8) 2.6
Dividends paid — CP Shares (11.5) - - (11.5) -
Dividends paid — outside equity interests (1.1) (1.4) (1.8) - -
Other 0.6 0.8 — - -
Net ¢ash provided by/(used in) financing activities 607.4 (17.5) (21.4) (15.9) 34.6
Net increase/(decrease) in cash held 714.7 11.1 97.8 22.6 (0.2)
Cash at beginning of year 216.0 187.5 71.6 0.1) 0.1
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash (8.0) 17.4 18.1 (1.5) -
Cash at end of year (a) 922.7 2160 187.5 21.0 (0.1)

The attached notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

Burns, Philp &

‘Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2002 200i| 2000 2002 2001
(a) Reconciliation of cash ‘
Cash assets (refer note 6) 923.6 2182 188.9 21.0 -
Bank overdrafts (refer note 15) (0.9) (2.2) (1.4) - {0.1)
Cash as per statements of cash flows 922.7 216.0 187.5 21.0 {0.1)
(b) Reconciliation of net cash providud by/(used in)
operating attivities to profit/(loss) from ordinary
activities after income tax
Profit/(loss) from ordinary activities after income tax 149.5 20.:5 83.7 16.9 4.1)
Add/(less)
Decpreciation and amortisation 105.0 100:7 98.6 0.1 0.1
Net expense from movements in provisions 49.7 169 18.4 34 1.0
Share of net profits of associates (10.1) (12:4) (11.6) - -
Dividends received from associates 153 8:6 7.8 - -
Net loss/(profit) on disposal of non current '
assets and businesses 2.0 (0:3) 0.7 - -
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) reclassified
to financing activities - - - 0.3 (0.2)
Reassessment of carrying value of non current assets - - (5.2) - -
" Changes in assets and liabilities net of effects of
acquisitions and disposals of businesses:
Trade debtors 8.6 (12.2) (4.0) - -
Inventocies (14.9) 5.2 23.5 - -
Trade creditors 84 1.7 12.3 - -
Prepaid slotting allowances (32.0) (40.5) (44.6) - -
Provisions (24.3) (26.3) (18.3) 4.0) (.1)
Current and deferred tax provisions 0.8) 1.7 5.2 (3.9) -
Future income tax benefit “4.4) 6.5 - - -
Other assets and liabilities (net) 1.1 (15.5) (14.4) (1.4) (0.4)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 213.1 118.4 152.1 11.4 {4.7)
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(c) Acquisitions and disposals of businesses

Conisolidated
’ 2002 2001 2000
AS$ million Acquisitions Disposals Acquisitions Disposals Acquisitions Disposals
Considcration:
Cash payment (22.5) - (11.9) - - -
Amount payable - - (2.5) - - -
Cash proceeds - 0.7 - 8.9 - 5.5
Amount receivable — — - 3.9 = -
(22.5) 0.7 {14.4) 12.8 - 3.5
Fair value of net assets acquired/disposcd of:
Property, plant and equipment - - - 95 - -
Intangible assets - - (14.4) - - -
Inventories - - - 1.3 - -
Cash - - - - - 0.3
Other current and non current assets (20.2) 0.7 - - - 5.4
Payables 2.3) - - - - (0.2)
Provisions - - — 1.9 -~ (0.3)
(22.5) 0.7 (14.4) 12.7 - 5.2
Profit on disposal of businesses - -~ - 0.1 - 0.3
(22.5) 0.7 (14.4) 12.8 - 5.5
(Outflow)/inflow of cash:
Cash (payment)/proceeds (22.5) 0.7 (11.9) 8.9 - 5.5
Cash disposed of — — - - - (0.3)
(22.5) 0.7 (11.9) 8.9 — 5.2

(d) Non cash financing activities

During the year ended 30 June 2002, $260.9 million of 7.5% Notes were bought:back pursuant to a Notez Buy Back Offer

(refer note 17 for further details).

Total consideration for the Notcs Buy Back comprised cash of $130.45 million and a $130.45 million allotment of
converting preference shares (CP Shares). $5.3 million of the 7.5% Notes were also redeemed for cash during the year

cnded 30 June 2002,

In addition to the $130.45 million allotment of CP Shares pursuant to the Notes Buy Back, a renounceable rights issue
of CP Sharcs during the year ended. 30 June 2002 raised cash of $104.0 million,

(c) Financing facilities — refer note 18(h).
(f) Refer note 15(c).
(g) Refer note 15(c).

(h) Refer note 17.
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Notes to the F ina cial Statements

NOTE 1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant policies which have been adopted in the
preparation of this financial repart are:

(a)

(b)

32

Basis of Preparation

The financial report is a general purpose financial
report which has been prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standards, Urgent Tssues Group Consensus
Views, other authoritative pronousncements of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board and the
Corporations Act 2001,

It has been prepared on the basis of historical costs
and, except where stated, does not take into account
changing money values or fair values of non current
assets,

These accounting policies have been consistently

applied by each entity in the consolidated entity and,

except where there is a change in accounting policy, ©
are consistent with those of the previous year.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of Bums, Philp & Company
Limited (the Company), being the parent entity, and its
controlled entities (the consolidatzd entity or Group).

Controlled entitiey

The financial statements of contrclled entities are
included from the date control commmences until the
datc control ceases.

Outside interests in the equity and result of the entities
that are controlled by the Company are shownasa
separate item in the consolidated financial statements.

Associales

Associates are those entities, other than partnerships,
over which the consolidated entity exercises significant
influence and which are not intended for sale in the
near future,

In the consolidated financial statements investments

in associates are accounted for using equity accounting
principles. (@)
Investments in associatcs are carried at the lower of

the equity accounted amount and recoverable amount.
The consolidated entity’s equity sccounted share of

the associates’ net profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial performance from
the date significant influence commences until the
date significant influence ceases. Other movements

in reserves are recognised direetly in consolidated
TCSCTVES,

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Unrealised gains and losses and inter-entity balances
resulting from transactions with or between controlled
entities are eliminated in full on consolidation,

Unrealised gains resulting from transactions with
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the consolidated entity’s interest. Unrealizsed
gains relating!to associates and joint venture entities
are eliminated against the carrying amount of the
investment, Unrealised losses are elimninated in the
same way as unrealised gains, unless they evidence

a recoverable amount impairment.

Foreign Currency

Foreign currency transactions are manslated to
Australian currency at the rates of exchange ruling
at the dates of the fransactions,

Amounts receivable and payable in foreign currencies
at balance date are translated at rates of exchange
ruling on that date.

Statements of performance for overseas controlled
entitics are translated to Australian currency at the
weighted average rates of exchange ruling during the
year. All overseas operations are considered to be self-
sustaining., On consolidation, exchange differences
arising on the translation of financial statements of
overseas controlled entities are transferred directly 1o
the foreign cutrency translation reserve together with
any cxchangg gains or losses on foreign currency
monetary liabilities, after applicable income tax,
which hedge the net investment, or form part of the
net investment, in self-sustaining overseas operations,

Foreign exchange translation gains or losses arising out
of current account balances and unhedged forcign currency
borrowings are reflected in the consolidated result.

Goodwill

Goodwill, being the excess of purchase consideration
over the fair valuc of identifiable net assets acquired,
is amortised on a straight line basis over the period of
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(e)

(0

(g)

expected benefit, not exceeding 20 years. In addition,
the carrying value of goodwill is reviewed annually by
the Directors.

Identifiable Intangible Assets

[dentifiable intangible assets (rademarks, tradenames,
brandnamecs and technological assets) are amortised on
a straight line basis over the period of expected benefit,
not exceeding 40 years. In addition, the carrying value
of identifiable intangible assets is reviewed annually by
the Directors.

The consolidated entity adopted the cost basis for
measuring identifiable intangible assets from 1 July
2000 and deemed cost to be equal to carrying value as
at 1 July 2000. Previously, identifiable intangible assets
were measured at either cost ar directors’ valuation.

Research and Development

Research and development expenditure, including
expenditure on developing, maintaining, enhancing
and protecting fermentation technology and other
technologies, is charged apainst the consolidated
result in the year in which it is incurred.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation is provided on plant and equipment
generally on a straight line basis at annual rates
varying between 3% and 33% (2001 = 3% and 33%;
2000 — 3% and 33%) so as to write off the cost of the
assets over their expected cconomic useful lives of 3 to
33 years. Depreciation is also pravided on freehold
buildings at an annual rate of 2% (200} - 2%; 2000 —
2°%%) over their expected cconomie useful life of 50
ycars. Leasehold properties and improvements are
amortised over the economic useful life of the property
or the period of the respective lease, whichever is the
shorter, at annual rates varying between 3% and 5%
(2001 — 3% and $%; 2000 — 3% and 5%) being 20

to 33 years.

The consolidated entity adopted the cost basis for
measuring property, plant and equipment from 1 July
2000 and deemed the cost of all items to be equal

to carrying value as at 1 July 2010. Previously,
property, plant and equipment was measured at either
cost or directors’ valuation.

All jtemns of property, plant and =quipment are carried
at the lower of cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortisation, and recoverable amount.

Burns, Philp & Company Lintited und ity Controlled Entitles — 2002 Annual Report
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Investments
Associates

Investments in associates are accounted for using
equity accounting principles. Investments in associates
are carried alithe lower of the equity accounted amount
and recoverable arnount.

Other investinents

Other investments are cartied at the lower of cost and
recoverable amount.

Recoverable Amount of Non Current Assets
Vilued on Cost Basis

The carrying amounts of non current assets valued on
the cost basis are reviewed to determine whether they
are in excess:of their recoverable amount at balance
date. If the carrying amount of a non current asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset 1s written
down to the iower amount, The write-down is
Tecognised as an expense in the net profit or loss

in the reporting period in which it occurs.

Where a group of assets working together supports
the gencration of ¢ash inflows, recoverable amount
is assessed in relation to that group of assets,

In assessing recoverable amounts of non current assets
the relevant cash flows have not been discounted to
their presentivalue, except where specifically stated.

Revenue Recognition

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised (net of
returns, discounts and allowances) when the risks and
rewards of ownership and title of the goods pass to the
customer.

Rendering of services

Revenue cornprises revenue earned from provision
of scrvices to cntities outside the consolidated entity.
Revenue is recognised when the fee in respect of
services provided is receivable.

Interest revenue

Interest revenue is recognised as it acerues, taking into
account the cffective yield on the financial assct,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (~ontinued)

NOTE 1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i) Revenue Recognition (continued)
Sale of non current assets

The gross proceeds of non currcnt asset sales are
included as revenue at the date control of the asset
passes to the buyer, usually when ian unconditional
contract of salc is signed.

The gain or loss on disposal is calsulated as the
difference between the carrying arnount of the asset at
the time of disposal and the net proceeds on disposal.

Dividendy

Revenue from dividends and distributions from
controlled entities is recognised by the Company
when they are declared by the controlled entities.

Revenue from dividends from other investments
are recogrised when received.

(k) Borrowing Costs

Ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings are capitalised and
amortised over the life of the borrowings.

(1) Taxation

The income statement liability tnathod of tax-effect
accounting is adopted. Under this methoed, income
tax expense is based on accounting profit adjusted
for permanent differences between accounting and
taxable income.

Future income tax benefits relating to timing
differences arc not brought to account unless
realisation of the asset is assured beyond rcasonable
doubt, Future income tax benefits relating to tax losses
are only brought to account when their realisation is
virtually certain.

Withholding tax is provided on overseas earnings
which are expected to be remitted. No provision
is made for earnings anticipated to be retained by
overscas controlled entities to finunce ongoing
operations.

(m) Tnventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the basis of
first-in-first-out, or average cost, whichever is the most

(m)

(@)

appropnate fur each individual business. The method
of assigning costs to inventory in each business is
applied consistently from year to year. Sclling and
distribution costs are estimated and deducted to
determine net: realisable value. Adequate provision

is made for slow moving and obsolete inventory.

The cost of manufactured inventory and work in
progress inchides applicable variable and fixed factory
averhead costs, the latter being allocated on the basis
of normasl operating capacity.

Prepaid Slotting Allowances

The consoliditted entity has incurred costs (slotting
allowances) in connection with shelf space contracts
for certain of:its herbs and spices food products. Time-
based contracts are amortised over the life of the
contract, generally three to five years. Volume-based
contracts are amortised over the volume of purchases.
Prepaid slotting allowances are not recorded in excess
of their recoverable amount,

Employee Entitlements
Annuul leave

The provision for employee entitlements to annual
leave represents present obligations resulting from
employees’ services provided up to balance date,
calculated at undiscounted amounts based on current
wage and salary rates.

Long service.leave

The provision for employee entitlements to long
service leave represents the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows to be made resulting
from ernployees’ services provided up to balance date,

The provision is calculated using estimated future
increases in wage and salary rates and expected
settlement dates based on turnover history and is
discounted using the rates attaching to national
government securities at balance date which most
closely match the terms of maturity of the related
lisbilities.

Superannuation plans

The Company and other controlled entities contribute
to several defined benefit and defined contribution
superannuation plans. Contributions are expensed as
incurred. Further information 1s set out in note 28.
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P)

Q)

r)

(s)

(3]

Statements of Cash Flows

For the purposc of the statements of cash tlows,
cash includes cash assets net of bank overdrafts.

Converting Financial Instruments

Converting financial instruments, such as converting
preference shares, which must convert to ordinary
shares arc classified as contributed equity on initial
recognition to the extent that holders are exposed to
changes in fair value of the Company’s ordinary shares
with related distributions treated ss dividends.

Rounding Off

Burns, Philp & Company Limited s a coinpany of
the kind referred to in ASIC Clags Order 98/100 dated
10 July 1998 and in accordance with that Class Order
amounts in the financial report have been rounded

off to the nearcest tenth of a million daollars unless
otherwise shown.

Use of Estim:tes

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statemnents in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities snd the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and costs and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates,

Changes in Accounting Policies
Earnings per share

The Group has applied the revised AASB 1027
Earnings Per Sharc (issued June 2001) for the first
titne from 1 July 2001,

Basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for the
comparative periods ended 30 June 2000 and 30 June
2001 have been adjusted so that the basis of calculation
used is cousistent with that of the current period.

Basic earnings per share

Basic EPS earnings arc now calculated as net profit
or loss after adjusting for dividends on CP Shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted EPS carnings are now calculated by only
adjusting the 'basic EPS carnings for the after tax
effect of financing costs and the effect of conversion
to ordinary shares associated with the dilutive potential
ordinary shares, rather than incjuding the notional
earnings on the funds that would have been received
by the entity had the potential ordinary shares been
converted.

The diluted 3PS weighted average number of shares
now includes the weighted average number of shares
assumed to tie issued for no consideration in relation to
dilutive potential ordinary shares, rather than the total
number of dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Segment reporting

The Group has applied the revised AASB 1005
Segment Reporting (issucd in August 2000) for the
first time from 1 July 2001.

Individua! business segments have been identified on
the basis of grouping individual products or services
subject to simnilar risks and returns.

Comparative information has been restated for the
changes in definitions of segment revenues and results,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (:ontinued)

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2002 200t 2000 2002 200!
NOTE 2. REVENUE FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
Sale of goods revenue from operating activitics 1,361.7 1,390.9 1,256.2 - -
Rendering of services revenue from operating activities 29.9 30.7 30.1 — -
Total revenue from sales of goods ard rendeting of services  1,391.6 1421.6 1,286.3 - ~
Interest revenue from operating activitias:
Controlled entities - - - 9.0 0.5
Other partics 7.0 13.0 9.9 0.3 0.1
Total interest revenue 7.0 13.0 9.9 9.3 0.6
Other revenues from ordinary activities:
From operating activities
Dividends received from controlled entities - - - 16.0 —
Other 4.1 36 4.5 4.7 11.1
From non operating activities ]
Proceeds from disposal of non current asscts 23 153 29 - -
Total other revenues 6.4 189 7.4 20.7 i1.1
Total revenue [rom ordinary activitics 1,405.0 1,4535 1,303.6 30.0 11.7
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Buras, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
A3 million 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
NOTE 3. PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
BEFORE INCOME TAX RENEFIT/(EXPENSE)
Profit/(loss) from ordinary activities belore
income tax has been determined after crediting:
Net profit on disposal of property, plart and equipment - 04 - - -
Profit on disposal of businesses - 0:1 0.3 - -
Net foreign exchange gain - - - - 0.2
and after charging:
Borrowing costs:
7.5% Notes 24 224 20.5 - -
Debt Bonds ‘ 10.7 10.3 8.9 - -
Deferred borrowing costs amortised ° 3.9 - - - -
Other parties §5.9 63.1 61.5 0.1 1.2
Total borrowings costs 72.9 958 90.9 0.1 1.2
Depreciation and amortisation:
Plant and equipment 53.8 57.4 54.5 0.1 0.1
" Frechold properties 4.8 5.6 4.5 - -
Leaschold properties 0.2 0.1 0.1 - -
Leasehold improvements 1.8 1.8 1.4 - -
Goodwill ' 2.5 1.9 22 - -
Identifiable intangibles 9.4 9.7 8.3 - -
Prepaid slotting allowances 32.5 24,2 27.6 = -
Total depreciation and amortisation 105.0 100,7 98.6 0.1 0.1
Net expense from moverncnts in provision for: .
Employee entitlements 14.9 15.9 135 0.4 0.3
Inventory obsolescence 3.7 1.1 1.4 — -
Business closure and rationalisation 26.3 ¢.n - - -
Other 85 2 49 3.0 0.7
Operating lease rental expense 75 9.1 8.6 0.2 03
Net foreign exchange loss 0.2 0.3 0.1 0.3 -
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2.0 - 1.0 - -
Research and development costs expensed 5.8 7.0 7.3 - -
Net bad and doubrful debts expense including '
movements in provision for doubtful debts 9.3 4.1 3.5 - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements {:ontinued)

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
A$7000 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
NOTE 3. PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM CORDINARY ACTIVITIES
BEFORE INCOME TAX BENEFIT/(EXPENSE)
(CONTINUED)
Auditors’ remuneration:
Audit services
Auditors of the Company — KPMG (a) 883.6 995.1 978.8 121.0 110.0
Other auditors 23.0 26.0 27.0 - -
Total andit fees 906.6 1,021.1 1,005.8 121.0 110.0
Qther services
Auditors of the Company — KPMG (a)
US GAAP assurance services (b) 882.0 - - - -
Other assurance services (c) 464.0 3118 310.0 15.0 20.1
Refinancing due diligence - 272:0 100.0 - 272.0
Taxstion 225.0 207.0 145.0 - -
Other 32.0 370 71.5 - -
Other auditors 1.0 - 21.0 - -
Total other services 1,604.0 8278 647.5 150 292.1

(a) Includes fees paid 10 KPMG offices in rclation to the consolidated entity’s operations in 16 countries.

(b) Fees for US GAAP assurance setvices comprise amounts paid to KPMG in Australia and the US in relation to
opinions provided en US GAAP financial information as part of the US Senior Subordinated Notes capital raising.

(c) Other assurance services include fees paid in relation to auditing completion financial statements in respect of businesses
that have been disposed.

38 Burns, Philp & Company Limited and its Controlled Entitiey — 2002 Annual Report




12/09 '02 THU 10:19 FAX

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
NOTE 4. INDIVIDUALLY SIGNYFICANT ITEMS INCLUDED
IN PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
BEFORE INCOME TAX RENEFIT/(EXPENSE)

Provision for Oakland closure costs (a) 25.1) - — - -
Provision for amounts due from Kmart USA (b) (10.1) - - - -
Reassessment of carrying value of nor, current asscts:

Herbs and Spices - - 38.0 - -

Yeast/Bakery ~ - (32.8) — -
Total individually significant items (35.2) - 5.2 — —
{(a) On 31 March 2002 the Group anngunced the closure of the Oakland USA yeast plant resulting in 2 $25.1 million

provision for closure costs,

Movements in the components of the Oskland provision for closure costs are as ffollows:

Property, Plant and

AS million Equipment Writc-downs Severance* Other Total

Provision created 17.2 32 4.7 PAR

Amount utilised (17.2) (L.1) 0.9) (19.2)

Foreign currency fluctuations — (0.1) (0.2) (0.3)

Balance at end of year — 2.0 3.6 5.6

* The severance provision related to 45 employces, 25 of whom were terminated during the year,

(b) During the year, Kimart USA, a major customer of the Hetbs and Spices business, announced it was sceking protection
from its creditors under US bankrpicy laws. As a result, a provision of $10.1 niillion, being the full amount outstanding

from Kmart USA, has been made,
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

Burns, Philp &
Consolidated Company Limited

AS3 million 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
NOTE 5. INCOME TAX

Tncome tax benefit/(cxpense) relating to ordinary activities
Pritma facie income tax (expense)/benefit calculated at 30%
(2001 — 34%; 2000 — 36%) on profit from ordinary activities 36.2) (34/9) (35.3) 4.9) 13
(Increase)/decrease in incotne tax {expensc) due to:
Ulilisation of tax losses and timing differences

not previously recognised 19.9 15:8 18.0 33 (1.0)
Share of nct profits of associates 3.0 4.2 4.1 - -
Differences in overseas tax rates 5.9 (1.2) (0.5) - -
Rebateable dividends - - - 4.8 -
Other permancnt adjustments 0.1) - 4.0 0.7) (0.4) (0.6)

Income tax (expense)/benefit relating to ordinary
activities before individually signifirant income tax item (19.3) (12.1) (14.4) 3.7 {0.3)
Tndividually significant income tax item;

Recoupment of United States tax losses and

timing differences not previously rzcognised (b) 47.9 - - - —
Income tax benefit/(expense) relating to ordinary activities 28.6 (12.1) (14.4) 3.7 (0.3)

Income tax benefit/(expense) is made up of
Current income 1ax (expense) (15.0) 9.9) (13.0) (0.3) (0.3)
Deferred income tax benefit/(expense) 43.6 (2.2) (1.4) 4.0 -
28.6 (12.1) (14.4) 3.7 (0.3)

Current tax liabilities ‘
Pravision for current income tax 9.9 5.8 7.6 0.1

Deferred tax liabilities
Provision for deferred income tax 12.0 20.2 17.5 - —

Comprises the deferred liability at cuitent income
tax rates of the following itemns:

Excess of taxation depreciation over

accounting depreciation 9.7 12.4 10.9 - -
Other items 2.3 1.8 6.6 - -
12.0 20.2 17.5 - -

Deferred tax assets

Furture income tax benefit 66.2 5.5 5.9 - -
Comprises the future tax benefit at current

income tax rates of the following itenis:

Tax losses carried forward 63.6 23 2.1 - -
Provisions 6.5 2.3 20 - -
Other items : 2.1 0.9 1.8 — -
66.2 5.5 5.9 - -

Future income tax benefit not rccognised (c) 368.8 415.5 421.4 11.7 20.6
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{a) The Group had gross deferred tax assets of $435.0 million (2001 — $421.0 millicn; 2000 — $427.3 million), a valuation
allowance of $36%.8 million (2001 - $415.5 million; 2000 — $421.4 million), net deferred tax assets of $66.2 million
(2001 - $5.5 million; 2000 — $5.9 tnillion). and deferred tax liabilities of $12.0 million (2001 ~ $20.2 million; 2000 -
$17.5 million). The net change in the valuation allowance for the Group for the year ended 30 June 2002 was a decrease
of 346.7 million (2001 — $5.9 million decrease; 2000 — $12.1 million decrease).

(b) The result for the year ended 30 Jwie 2002 includes the gain arising on the recognition of a $47.9 million deferred tax

asset in relation to the US businesses.

The tecent history of the Group’s US businesscs indicates an ongoing improvement in profitability and a return to
generating taxablc profits. Furtherrnore, the US businesscs are forecast to continie to remain profitable and generate

furture taxable profits.

Given the stabilised and forccast profitability, and the generation of taxable profits, the Directors are of the opinion that
virtual ¢ertainty now exists in relation to the recoverability of a component of the unrccognised US future income tax

benefit relating to tax loss carryforwards and certain timing ditferences.

{c) The potential future income tax benefit arising from tax losses and timing differences has not been recognised as an
asset because recovery of tax losses is not virtually certain and recovery of timirig differences is not assured beyond
any reasonable doubt. The potential future incorme tax benefit will only be realised if there are no adverse changes in
tax legislation and the companics :oncerned derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be realised
and continue to comply with the conditions for deductibility imposed by the law,

(d) The adjusted dividend franking account balance in Burns, Philp & Company Limited at 30 Junc 2002 was Nil

(2001 - $0.92 mitlion; 2000 — 30.9 million).

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
NOTE 6. CASH ASSETS
Cash at bank and on hand 76.0 30.4 16.5 5.7 -
Short term deposits 832.3 187.8 172.4 - -
Restricted deposit (a) 153 — — 15.3 -
Total cash assets 923.6 218.2 188.9 21.0 -

(a) Debt Reserve Account in accordarice with the Senior
Funding Agreement (refer note 15(c) for further details)
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
NOTE 7. RECEIVABLES
Current
Trade debtors 156.3 226:5 189.1 - -
Provision for doubtful debts (a) (12.7) (13.2) (11.4) - —
143.6 21333 177.7 - -
Secured receivables 04 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4
Other receivables 16.4 16.2 12.6 2.4 0.5
Amounts receivable from controlled entities - — — 251.5 44.0
Total current receivables 160.4 229.9 190.7 254.3 44.9
Non current
Other recejvables . 1.8 4.9 1.0 — -
({a) Movements in provision for doubtful debts were:
Balance at beginning of year 13.2 14 10.8 - -
Foreign curteney fluctuations : (5.2) 1.5 0.5 - -
Additions to provision 5.8 a1 29 - -
Bad debts written ofT against provision {(1.1) (4.8) (2.8) — -
Balance a1 end of year 12.7 13.2 11.4 - -
NOTE 8. INVENTORIES
Current
Finished goods (a) 64.7 74.4 64.1 - -
Provision against finished goods (b) 1.9) .9 2.2) - -
Work in progress (a) 7.6 9.5 11.5 - -
Provision against work in progress (b) - - 0.1y - -
Raw materials (a) 55.2 52.5 503 - -
Provision against raw materials (b) (2.5) (0.8) (3.8) - -
Total inventories 123.1 132.7 119.8 - —
(a) At cost
(b) Movements in provision for inventory obsolescence were:
Balance at beginning of year 37 6.1 19.6 - -
Foreign currency fluctuations (0.5) 1.2 0.8 - -
Additions to provision 3.7 1.1 (10,0) - —
Inventories written off against provision (2.5) 4.7 4.3 - -
Balance at end of year 4.4 3.7 6.1 - -
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Buras, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
NOTE 9. OTHER ASSETS
Current
Prepaynients 10.6 14.6 9,7 - 0.4
Prepaid slotting allowances (a) 16.4 18i0 11.0 - -
Deferred expenditure 0.9 0.3 0.5 - -
Total current other assets 27.9 329 21.2 - 0.4
Non current
Prepayments 5.6 6.5 4.6 - -
Prepaid slotting allowances (a) 329 36.6 216 - -
Business acquisition deposit (b) 20.2 - - — -
Defetred borrowing costs (c) 347 1.2 - - -
Deferred expenditure 6.2 6.3 6.4 - 1.2
Total non current other assets 99.6 50.6 32.6 - 1.2
(a) Prepaid slotting allowances:
Cost 179.2 165.8 105.3 - -
Accumulated amortisation (129.9) (111.2) (72.7) — —-
49.3 546 32.6 - -

(b) On S June 2002 the Group announced that it had entered into a prcliminary agreement with Kraft Foods International Inc.
to acquire its Fleischmann'’s yeast and industrial bakery ingredients business in South America. The agreement is
conditional upon the negotiation of a sale and purchase agreement as well as approval of the board of Kraft Foods Inc.

{c) Refer note 1(k).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Consolidated
AS million - 2002 2001 2000
NOTE 10. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED
FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
Non current
Associates 58.6 66.9 58.1

Details of investments in associates an: as follows:
% Ownership Interest

Name Principal Activities Balance Date 2002 2001 2000
Levaduras Collico SA Yeast Manufacture 30 June 50 50 s0
Mauri Fermentation (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Yeast Manufacrure 30 June 42 42 42
Mauri Fermentation Pakistan (Private) Ltd  Yeast Manufacture 30 Jupe 50 50 -
Mauri Products Lirnited Yeast Manufacture 15 September 50 50 50
Meishan-Mauri Yeast Co Ltd Yeast Menufacture 30 June 50 50 50
Pilmico-Mauri Foods Corporation Yeast Manufacture 30 June : 50 S0 50
Proofex Products Company Yeast Manufacture 16 September 30 30 30
P.T. Indo Fermex Yeast Manufacture 31 December 49 49 49
P.T. Sama Indah Yeast Manufacture 31 December 49 49 49
PT. Natraco Spices Indonesia Spices Processing 31 December 50 50 50
Consolidated
AS million . 2002 2001 2000

Results of associates
Share of associates ':

Profit from ordinary activities before income tax cxpense 14.2 16.7 15.7

Income tax cxpense relating to profit from ordinary activities (4.1) (4.3) 4.1)
Share of net profits of associates accounted for using the equity method 10.1 12.4 11.6

Movements in carrying amount of investments in associates

Carrying amount of investments at bzginning of yecar 66.9 58.1 51.8

Share of net profits of associates 10.1 12.4 11.6

Dividends received from associates (15.3) (8.6) (7.8)
Share of (decrement)/increment in associates’ foreign currency translation reserves. (3.6) 4,7 35

Capital contributed to an associate 0.5 0.3 -

Return of capital by an. associate - — (1.0)

Carrying amount of investments at end of yesr (a) 58.6 66.9 58,1
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, Consolidated

AS million 2002 2001 - 2000

Share of post-acquisition retained profits and reserves attributable to associates

Retained profits

Sharc of associates’ retained profits al beginning of year 7.5 37 (0.1)
Share of associates® nct profits accounied for using the ¢quity method 10.1 12.4 11.6

Dividends from associates (15.3) (8.6) (7.8)
Share of associates’ retained profits at end of year 2.3 7.5 3.7

Asset revaluation reserve

Share of associates’ asset revaluation reserves at beginning and e¢nd of year 19.0 19.0 19.0

Foreign currency translation reserve

Share of associates’ foreign currency translation reserves at beginning of year (20.9) (25.6) 29.1)
Share of (decrement)/increment in associates’ foreign currency translation reserves (3.6) 4,7 3.5

Share of associates” foreign currency translation reserves at end of year (24.5) (20.9) (25.6)
Other reserves

Share of associates’ other reserves at beginning and end of year 18.9 18.9 18.9

Summary performance and financial position of associates

The consolidated entity’s share of aggregate assets,

liabilities and profits of associates are as follows:

Net profit — as reported by associates and equity adjusted (b) ‘ 10.1 12.4 11.6

Net assets

Current assets 27.9 314 27.8

Non current aszests 48.4 52.6 42.9

Total assets 76.3 84.0 70.7

Current liabilities 12.5 13.4 10.4

Non current liabilities ' 5.2 3.7 22

Total liabilities 17.7 17.1 12.6

Nel assers — as reported by associates and equity adjusted (b) 58.6 66.9 58.1

(a) No individual investment in an associate is material in amount.
(b) There were no adjustments arising from equity accounting.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limitced
AS million 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
NOTE 11. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS '
Non current
Shares in controlled entities (a) - - - 132.9 160.0
Shares in other corporations (b) 4.0 7.6 7.6 - -
US Treasury Notes 2.7 — - — —
Total non ¢urrent other financial assets 6.7 7.6 7.6 132,9 160.0
(a) Shares in controlled entities:
Cost - - - 162.1 189.2
Provision for diminution in value - — — (259.2) (29.2)
— - - 132.9 160.0
(b) Written, down to recoverable amount,
NOTE 12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and equipment ,
Cost 788.6 929.5 789.1 1.0 1.0
Accumulated depreciation (427.8) (479.9) (397.9) (0.9) (0.8)
360.8 449.6 391.2 0.1 0.2
Frechold properties (a) (b)
Cost 206.7 2429 9.6 - -
Independent valuation — 30/6/97 — — 207.0 — -
206.7 242.9 216.6 - -
Accumulated depreciation (24.3) (23.3) (18.8) - —
182.4 215.6 197.8 = —
Leasehold properties (a) (b)
Cost 8.0 59 0.2 - -
Independent valuation — 30/6/97 — = 4.2 - -
8.0 5.9 4.4 - -
Accumulated amortisation (0.6) (0.5) (0.3) - -
7.4 5.4 4,1 - —
Leasehold improvements (b)
Cost 384 40.7 28.0 - -
Directors’ valuation — 30/6/87 - - 29 - —
384 40.7 '30.9 - -
Accumnulated amortisation (11.8) (11.2) (8.1) — -
26.6 29.5 228 — -
Total property, plant and equipment 577.2 704.1 615.9 0.1 0.2
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(a) Independent valuations, on an existing use basis of valuation, were obtained for 1l properties at 30 June 2000. These
valuations which disclosed a surplus of $8.5 million over book value have not been recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

(b) The consolidated entity applied AASB 1041 Rovaluation of Non Current Assets for the first time from 1 July 2000
and deerned the cost of properties 3nd leasehold improvements to be equal to carrying value as at 1 July 2000.

(c) Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment are set out below:

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
A% million 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
Plant and equipment
Carrying amount at beginning of year 449.6 3912 3784 0.2 02
Foreign currency fluctuations 94.1) 42.9 29.9 - -
Additions 76.1 79.8 32.1 - 0.1
Disposals (17.5) (8.5) (2.8) - -
Depreciation (53.8) (57.4) (54.5) (0.1) (0.1
Reclassifications 0.5 §.6 13.3 - -
Reassessment of carrying values — - (5.2) — —
Carrying amount at ¢nd of year 360.8 449.6 391.2 0.1 0.2
Frechold properties
Carrying amount at beginning of vear 219.6 197.8 195.3 - -
Foreign currency fluctuations (29.4) 23.7 153 - -
Additions 3.0 5.7 20 - -
Disposals 2.9 2.0) (1.1) - -
Depreciation (4.8) (5.6) 4.5) - -
Reclassifications (3.2) - {9.2) - -
Carrying amount at end of year 1824 219.6 197.8 - -
Leasehold properties
Carrying amount at beginning of year 5.4 4.1 34 - -
Foreign currency fluctuations 0.2 0.2 0.1 - -
Additions 2.0 1.4 0.3 - -
Amortisation (0.2) ®.1 0.1 - -
Reclassifications .2) 04 - -
Carrying amount at end of year 7.4 5.4 4.1 — -
Leaschold improvements
Carrying arnount at beginning of vear 295 228 23.4 - -
Foreign currency fluctuations (2.2) 3 1.9 - -
Additions 1.2 1.9 1.7 - -
Disposals 0.1) - (0.2) - -
Amortisation (1.8) (1.8) (1.4) - -
Reclassifications — 3.5 (2.6) - -
Carrying amount at end of year 26.6 29.5 22.8 - —
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Notes to the Financial Statements {tontinued)

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited

AS$ million 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
NOTE 13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
1dentifisble intangible assets (a)
Cost 331.2 398.6 - - -
Independent valuation — 31/12/97 (b) (d) - - 323.5 - -
Directors’ valuation —31/12/97 (c) - - 19.2 - —

331.2 398.6 342.7 - -
Accumulated amortisation (34.3) (29:6) (16.1) — -
Total identifiable intangible assets 296.9 369:0 326.6 - —
Purchased goodwill
Cost 36.1 54:3 A41.3 - -
Accumulated amortisation (13.6) (15.8) (12.9) - -
Total purchased goodwill 22.5 38.5 28.4 - —
Total intangible assets ) 3194 407.5 355.0 — -

(a) The consolidated entity applied AASB 1041 Revaluation of Non Current Assets for the first time from 1 July 2000
and deemed the cost of identifiable intangible assets to be equal to carrying valve as at 1 July 2000,

(b) Identifiable intangible asscts (tradzmarks, tradenames, brandnames and technological assets) of the yeast, yeast extracts
and vincgar businesses were indepi:ndently valued at 31 December 1997. The valuations were carried out by Grant Samuel
& Associates and were determined using the “relief from royalty™ mcthodology.

(c) Identifiable intangible assets relating to the Argentine margarine and edible oil business were valued by the Directors
at 31 December 1997,

(d) Written down 1o recoverable amount where appropriate.

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
NOTE 14. PAYABLES
Current
Trade creditors 68.0 86.0 75.8 - -
Other creditors and accruals 74.5 88.7 78.6 31 4.2
Owing 10 controlled entities - - - 3.7 43.0
Total current payables 142.5 174.7 154.4 6.8 47.2
Non current
Other creditors 3.5 - - - —
Total non current payables 35 — - — -
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Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
NOTE 15. INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES
Current
Secured (c)
Senior indebtedness 17.8 19.7 26.3 - 0.3
Bank overdrafis 0.9 22 1.4 - 0.1
Other indebtedness 12.3 - - - -
7.5% Notes (d) - 2609 - - -
Unsecured
Debt Bonds (f) 174.8 - - - —
Total current interest bearing liabilities (a)(b) 205.8 282:8 27.7 - 04
Non current
Secured (c) i
Senior indebtedness 738.7 816.7 722.2 - 13.5
Other indebtedness - 9:5 4.3 - -
7.5% Notes (d) - 513 298.4 - -
Unsecurcd
Senior Subordinated Notes (e) 711.0 - - - -
Debt Bonds (f) - 197.4 167.2 - -
Total non current interest bearing liabilities (a)(b) 1,449.7 1,028.9 1,192.6 - 13.5
(a) Interest bearing liabilities by currency:
United States dollars 1,526.7 824.8 713.2 - -
Euro 66.0 - - - -
Canadian dollars 423 349 19.6 - -
New Zcaland dollars 14.3 136 32.7 - -
Australian dollars - 402.3 43779 - 13.9
German marks - 20,5 133 - -
Others 6.2 11.6 3.8 - —
Total interest bearing liabilities 1,655.5 1,311.7 1,220.3 — 13.9
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 15. INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Conselidated intetest bearing liabilities by maturity at 30 June:

Senior Senior 1.5% Debt Bank Other Other
Indebtedness Indebtedness Notes Bonds Overdrafts  Indebtcdness Tudebtedness
AS million Floating Flxed Fixed Fixed Floating Floating Fixed Tatal
2002
1 year or less 17.8 - - 174.8 09 8.5 a8 205.8
1 to 2 years 22.2 - - - - - - 22.2
2 to 3 years 97.8 - - - - - - 97.8
3 to 4 years 128.9 - - - - - - 128.9
4 to S years 489.8 - - - - - - 489.8
10 to 11 years - 711.0 — - - - 711.0
756.5 711.0 - 174.8 0.9 8.5 38 1,655.5
Weighted average
interest rate 3.85% 9.75% 55% 14.78%  5.18% 5.63% 6.57%
2001*
1 year or less 595.0 2414 260.9 - 2.2 9.5 - 1,109.0
2 to 3 years - - 5.3 197.4 — — - 202.7
595.0 241.4 266.2 197.4 2.2 9.5 - 1311.7
Weighted average ‘
interest rate 6.91% 7.89% 7.5% 5.5% 6.91% 6.91% 6.15%
2000
1 year or less 18.9 7.4 - - 14 - - 27.7
1 to 2 ycars 519.7 202.5 298.4 — - 4.8 - 1,025.4
3 to 4 years — - — 167.2 - —- — 167.2
538.6 209.9 298.4 167.2 1.4 4.8 - 1,220.3
Weighted average
interest ratc 7.75% 7.90% 7.5% 5.5% 15.25% 6.15% 7.41%

* The 2001 classifications have been determingdl prior to the refinancing which accurred subsequent to year end on 13 Aungust 2001

(rcfer note (c) over page for further detajls),
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(c) On 2 August 2001 the Group entergd into an agreement to borrow up to the equivalent of US$430 million from a
syndicate of banks (New Credit Facility), comprising a term loan facility of US$425 million and a revolving loan facility
of US$25 million which was subsecjuently reduced to USS10 million on 10 December 2001. The New Credit Facility has
a term of five years. '

The Senior Funding Agreement dated 2 August 2001 governs the terms on which: the banks will lend funds to the Group.
Amounts owing under the Senior Funding Agreement are secured on a senior ranking basis, whereby major asset owning
companies in the Group have granted security over their assets in favour of a Security Trustee. The security comprises
guarantees from the Company’s major wholly owned operating subsidiaries, both:local and ovetseas, and security over
most of the Company’s assets and the assets of its guarantor subsidiaries.

On 8 August 2001 the Group drew Jown the equivalent of US$425 million under the New Credit Facility. These funds
were used to repay debt that matured under the Group’s existing senior debt funding agresment (the Override Agreement).
In accordancee with the New Credit Facility amortisation schedule, US85 million had been repaid to 30 June 2002 and a
further US$5 million was repaid on 2 August 2002.

The terms of the Senior Funding Ajzreement included a requirement to establish a Debt Reserve Account, The Group was
required to ensure that specified amounts were paid to this account until the balabce of the account was US$100 million,
Dcposits in this account could be withdrawn inn accordance with the terms of the 'Senior Funding Agreement, to repurchase
or redeem the 5.5% guaranteed subordinated convertible debt bonds (Debt Bonds) issued by Burns Philp Treasury
(Europe) BV.

In accordence with the requirements of the Senjor Funding Agreement, there was a balance of US$8.5 million in the

Debt Reserve Account as at 30 Junz 2002 and a further US$15 million was deposited into the account on 14 August 2002,
With the redemption of the Debt Bonds on 9 September 2002 (refer note 17 for further details), the balence of this account
will now be withdrawn.

Tn addition to the debt governed by the terms of the Seniotr Funding Agreement there arc a number of other financings
typically invelving small amounts extended to operating companies in the Gr.ouﬁ not subject to the Senior Funding
Agreement. These facilities arc not secured by the security arrangements referred to in the above paragraphs but may,
in some instances, have the benefit of securities at the operating company level.

(d) During the year ended 30 June 2002, $260.% million of 7.5% Notcs were bought: back pursuant to a Notes Buy Back
Offer and $5.3 million of the 7.5% Notes were redeemed for cash (refer note 17 for further details),

(¢) On 21 June 2002 a subsidiary of Blurns, Philp & Company Limited, Burns PhilpCapital Pty Limited, issued in a
private offering, US$400 millien of Senior Subordinated Notes (Senior Subordinated Notes) that bear interest at 9.75%
and maturc on 15 July 2012. On 9 August 2002, Butns, Philp & Company Limiled lodged with the Securities and
Exchange Commission in the United States, a Formn F 4 Registration Statement for registrution of an exchange offer
under which the Senior Subordinated Notes issued on 21 June 2002 will be exchanged for idcntical registered notes.

It is anticipated that the Registratizn Stetemnent will be declared effective in November 2002.

The payment of principal and intetest, and the performance of all other obligations in respeet of the Senior Subordinated
Notes, are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Burns, Philp & Company Liimited and certain of its subsidiaries,

(f) All of the outstending Debt Bonds were redeemed by Burns Philp Treasury (Europe) BV on 9 September 2002
(refer note 17 for further details).

(g) Refer note 32 for additional financial instruments disclosure.
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Notes to the Financial Staternents (zontinued)

NOTE 15. INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(h) Financing facilities

Details of the consolidated entity’s committed financing facilities as at 30 June are set out below:

Consolidated
2002 Average 20111 Average 2000 Average
AS million  Maturity  ASmillion  Maturity A$ million  Maturity
Bank overdrafts 83 0.9 years 5177 0.3 years 44.7 1.1 years
Bank loan facilitics 792.1 4.1 years 591.7 0.1 years 5345 1.1 years
Senior Subordinated Notes 711.0 10.0 years - -
Debt Bonds 174.8. 1.8 years 1974 2.8 years 167.2 3.8 years
7.5% Notes - 2662 0.1 years 298.4 1.1 years
Other note issuance facilities - 2415 0.1 years 209.9 1.1 years
Total comrnitted lines of credit 1,686.2 1,348:5 1,254.7
Add cash 923.6 2182 188.9
Less interest bearing liabilities (1,655.5) (13117 (1,220.3)
Undrawn lines of credit and cash 954.3 255.0 223.3
Burns, Philp &
Consolidated Company Limited
AS$ million 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
NOTE 16, PROVISTONS
Current
Employee entitlements 13.7 14.7 202 0.5 0.9
Business closure and rationalisation 7.7 4.1 8.4 - -
CP Shares dividend 4.4 - - 4.4 -
Refinancing charges - 13.1 11.1 - -
Other 12.7 12.4 11.1 1.3 5.2
Total current provisions 38.5 443 50.8 6.2 6.1
Non current
Employee entitlements 23.0 23.2 15.9 0.5 0.4
Other 0.1 - 0.6 — —
Total non current provisions 23.1 23.2 16.5 0.5 04
52 Burns, Philp & Campany Limited and its Controlled Entities — 2002 Annual Repoiit

d o586




12/09 '02 THU 10:23 FAX @057

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
NOTE 17. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Issued and paid-up share capital
802,685,992 (2001 — 699,922,121,
2000 — 538,844,137) ordinary shares, fully paid 634.4 613.7 581.5 634.4 613.7
797,395,767 (2001 - Nil; 2000 ~ Nil)
converting preference shares, fully pais| 233.9 - - 233.9 -
Total contributed equity 868.3 613.7 581.5 868.3 613.7

Movements since 30 June 1999 in Burps, Philp & Company Limited ordinary shares, converting preference shares (CP Shares),
convertible notes (Estate Mortgage Notes), share options (2003 Options) and emplayee share options, the 7.5% Notes issued

by Burns Philp Food North Amcrica Inic (7.5% Notes) and the Debt Bonds issued by Bums Philp Treasury (Europe) BV, have
been as follows: ‘

Ordinary Shares

" Number of Shares AS million
Ordinary shares at 30 June 1999 530,600,750 5799
Excreise of 2003 Options 8,243 387 1.6
Ordinary shares at 30 June 2000 538,844,137 581.5
Excreise of 2003 Options "~ 161,077,984 32.2
Ordinary shares at 30 June 200! ’ 699,922,121 613.7
Exercise of 2003 Options _ 101,136,905 20.2
Conversion of CP Shares 1,626,966 0.5
Ordinary shares at 30 June 2002 802,685,992 634.4
Exercise of 2003 Options since year end 66,302 -
Conversion of CP Sharcs since year ernd 1,200 —
Ordinary Shares at 22 August 2002 802,753,994 634.4

Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and, at members’ meetings, are
entitled to one vote on 2 show of hands and one vote per shate on a poll.

In the event of winding up of the Company, ordinary shareholders rank after secured and unsecured creditors and holders
of the CP Shares (but only as to paymznt of any declared and unpaid dividend and the repayment of capital) and are fully
entitled to the balance of any proceeds on liquidation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (¢ontinued)

NOTE 17. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY (CONTINUED)

Converting Preference Shares (CP Shares)

. Number of Shares AS million
CP Shares at 30 June 1999, 30 June 2000 and 30 June 2001 - -
CP Shares issued 799,022,733 239.7
CP Share issue costs - (5.3)
.CP Shares converted into ordinary sharcs (1,626,966) (0.5)
CP Shares at 30 Junc 2002 797,395,767 2339
CP Shares converted into ordinary shates since year end (1,200) -
CP Shares at 22 August 2002 ' 797,394,567 233.9

Holders of CP Shares are entitled to rescive, where there are profits available for the payment of dividends, a cumulative
preferential dividend of 7.5% per annum bascd on the issue price of $0.30, payable quarterly with no guarantee of franking.
Each CP Share will convert (subject to takeaver laws) into ane ordinary share at any: time during its five year term at the
option of the holder, or otherwise on the fifth anniversary of its issue date of 13 Augiust 2001 (or, in certain limited
circumstances, later). No further payment will be required by the holder on conversion of the CP Sharcs. The conversion ratio
will be adjusted in certain circumstances, including on the final conversion date {f any cumulative dividend remains undeclared.

Haolders of CP Shares have the right to attend but no right to votc at members' meetings. In the event of winding up of the
Company, CP shareholders rank after creditors but int priority to any other class of shares as to payment of any declared and
unpaid dividend and the repayment of capital.

Convertible Notes (Estate Mortgage Notes)

Number of Notes AS million
Issued notes at 30 June 1999 12,000,000 16.1
Part repayment of principal — (2.1)
Issued notes at 30 June 2000 12,000,000 14.0
Part r¢payment of principal — (0.2)
Issued notes at 30 June 2001 12,000,000 13.8
Notes repaid (12,000,000) (13.8)

Issued notes at 30 June 2002 : - —

The Estate Mortgage Notes were issued by Burns, Philp & Company Limited on 15 September 1997, On 13 August 2001
the Group repaid $835.0 million of swiaior debt including all of the Estate Mortgage Notes.

- i
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Guaranteed Subordinated Convertible Debt Bonds (Debt Bonds)

. Number of Bonds AS million
Issued bonds at 30 June 1999 ' 20,000 149.8
Foreign currency fluctuation ‘ - 17.4
{ssued bonds at 30 June 2000 20,000 167.2
Foreign currency fluctuation — 30,2
Issued bonds at 30 June 2001 . 20,000 197.4
Bonds bought back and cancelled (335) 3.1
Foreign currency fluctuation — (19.5)
Issued bonds at 30 June 2002 19,665 174.8
Foreign currency fluctuation - 5.2
Issued bonds at 22 August 2002 ' 19,665 180.0

The Debt Bonds were issucd by Burns Philp Treasury (Europe) BV (BPTE), together with non detachable subordinated
conversion bonds (Conversion Bonds), issued by Burns, Philp & Company Limited on 24 March 1994,

The Debt Bonds were issued in denorminations of US$5,000 ¢cach and were fully paid. The Conversion Bonds were issued
in denominations of US$5,000 each and were paid up to US$0.01 ¢ach upon issue.

The Conversion Bonds were convertible into ordinary sharcs of Burns, Philp & Corapany Limited up until 20 April 2004,
The original conversion price of A$5,40 per share had been adjusted for defined changes to the issued capital with the
conversion price at 30 June 2002 being $A3.90,

During the current year US$1.7 million of the outstanding Debt Bonds were bought back and cancelled,

As at 30 June 2002 the USS$98.3 million of Debt and Conversion Bonds still outstanding, if converted, would have resulted
in the issue of 35,543,227 ordinary shares.

Subject to the Senior Funding Agreement, BPTE had the right to redeem the Debt 13onds at par in multiples of US$1 million
during the period 15 May 1997 to 30 April 2004. As at 30 June 2002 there had been no redemptions of the Debt Bonds,
but on 9 September 2002 BPTE, after having given notice to the Trustee and holdess of the Debt Bonds on 1 August 2002,

redeemed all of the outstanding Debt Bonds. Upon redemiption of the Debt Bonds, the Debt Bonds and the attached
Conversion Bonds were cancelled, '

The Debt Bonds and Conversion Bonds were listed on the London Stock Exchange: Limited,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (iontinued)

NOTE 17. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY (CONTINUED)

Buras Philp Food North America Inc 7.5% Nates due 2003 guaranteed by Burns, Philp & Company Limited (7.5%
Notes) issued together with separately transferable options (2003 Options) to subscribe for Ordinary Shares of Burns,

Philp & Company Limited.

7.5% Notes

2003 Options

Niimber AS million Number
Issued at 30 June 1999 1,007,722,845 201.5 1,007,722,845
Rights Issue 492277,1585 98.5 492,277,155
7.5% Notes redeemed and proceeds applied :
in exercise of 2003 Optijons (8,110,714) (1.6) (8,110,714)
2003 Options excreised for cash : - — (132,673
Issued at 30 June 2000 1,491,839,286 298.4 1,491,756,613
7.5% Notes redeemed and proceeds applied
in exercise of 2003 Options {160,902,762) (32.2) (160,902,762)
2003 Options excrcised for cash - — (175,222)
Issued at 30 June 200] 1,330,986,524 266.2 1,330,678,629
7.5% Notes redeemed and proceeds applicd
in exercise of 2003 Options (33,705) - (33,705)
7.5% Notes bought back (1,304,314,723) {260.9) -
7.5% Notes redeemed by the Notes Issuer (26,638,096) (5.3) -
2003 Options exercised for cash — — (101,103,200)
Issued at 30 June 2002 - - 1,225,541,724
2003 Options exercjsed since year end for cash - - (66,802)
Issued at 22 August 2002 - - 1,229,474,922

The terms of the 7.5% Notes and 2003 Options werc set out in a Notes Trust Deed dated 11 August 1998. At an Extraordinary
General Mceting of Noteholders held on 1 May 2000, Notcholders approved an amendment to the 7.5% Notes Trust Deed to

permit redemption of all or some of thic 7.5% Notes by Burns Philp Food North AﬂlenCd Inc. (the Notes Issuer) prior to their
Maturity Date of 15 August 2003, :

A Notes Buy-Back Offer of one Converting Preference Share and A$0.30 for every: three 7.5% Notes held was made by the
Notes [ssuer resulting in 1,304,314,723 7.5% Notes being bought back on 13 August 2001. The remaining 26,638,096 7.5%
Notes were redeemed by the Notes Issuer on 2 October 2001.

The main terms of the 2003 Options are as follows:
1. Issuer: Burns, Philp & Company Limited.
2. Exercise Price; A$0.20

3. Exercise Dates: The holder may elect to excreise the 2003 Options in whole or in part (in multiples

of 100 unless excreising all options held) at aqy time up until 5.00 pm on 14 August 2003,

4. Tradesbility: The 2003 Options are quotcd on the ASX wider code BPCO,

5. Ranking of shares issued on
exercise of Options:

6. Rights of Optionholiders to A holder of 2003 Options is entitled to parti:cipate in new issues of securities (other
participate in any share istue than issucs of Bonus Shares as defined in the Notes Trust Deed) of Bumns, Philp &
or interest issue of the Company: Company Limited to holders of ordinary shares without exercising the 2003 Options.

Ordinary shares issued on exercise of 2003 Options will rank in all respects pan passu
with the Companys issued ordinary shares.
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Employee Sharc and Share Option Plans

Employee share plans — stil] operate for employees in Australia, New Zealand, Indonesia and Malaysia. The structures of
the plans vary depending on local legislative and taxation requirements, but in most locations intérest-free loans have been
provided to enable employees to purchuise up to 500 ordinary shares each. The last loans were provided in 1997 and there is
no present intention to provide further loans.

Exccutive share plan — ordinary shares are held under this plan by executives. Intcrast-free loans were provided to enable
executives to purchase ordinary shares at market value. Entitlcrnent was based on seniority, No ordinary shares were allotted
to employees under this plan during the year. The plan was replaced by the incentive plan in 1992,

Incentive plan — under an incentive plan available to executives worldwide prior to 1998, participants could purchase a
specified number of options based on senjority. The excreise price of the options was based on the market price of the
Company'’s ordinary shares at the time of issue of the options. No options were offered during the year and there is no
present intention to offer furthet options.

The nurmnber of participants, ordinary sharcs und options on issuc and the value of outstanding loans at 30 June 2002 werc:

, Ordinary Loans

Share plans Members Shares A3 million
Employee share plans 138 68,064 0.2
Exccutive share plan 9 144,242 0.2
147 212,306 0.4

Incentive plan share options Exercise Price (AS$) Expifry Date Members Options
1.02 1 October 2002 23 69,950

During the current year, no options were issued, no options were exercised and 686.220 options were forfeited.

The cquivalent number of ordinary shares if all options were exercised is 69,950,

The market value of Burns, Philp & Compuny Limited ordinary shares at 30 June 2002 was $0.65 (2001 — $0.46; 2000 — $0.42),
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2002 20(!1 2000 2002 2001
NOTE 18, RESERVES
Capital reserves
Asset revaluation reserve 106.4 106.4 106.4 22.0 22.0
Other capital reserves 8.8 8.8 8.8 0.1 0.1
115.2 115.2 115.2 22.1 22.1
Revcenue reserve '
General reserve 18.1 153.1 18.1 - -
Foreign currency translation reserve (292.5) (115.5) (136.5) (3.9) (3.9)
Total reserves (158.2) 17.8 (3.2) 18.2 18.2
(a) Movements during the year
Asset revaluation reserve
Balance at beginning of year 106.4 106.4 108.7 22.0 220
Revaluation of identifiable intangisle assets — - (2.3) — -
Balance at end of year 106.4 106.4 106.4 22.0 22.0
Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance at beginning of year (115.5) (136.5) (i51.4) 3.9 3.9
Net foreign cxchange translation {loss)/gain
transferred directly to rescrve:
Controlled entities
Net translation (loss)/gain (200.3) 163 11.4 - -
Related deferred incorne tax benefit 26.9 - - - -
Associates
Net translation (loss)/gain (3.6) 4.7 3.5 — -
Balance at end of year (292.5) (115.5) (136.5) (3.9) (3.9)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve comprises the net revaluation increments and decrements arising in prior years from the

revaluation of properties, identifigble intangibles and other financial asscts. As a result of adopting the deemed cost

election for these classes of asset on the application of AASB 1041 from 1 July 2000, the reserve balance is not available
for funice property, identifiable intangible or other financial assct write-downs.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currcney translation teserve records the foreign currency differences arising from the translation of self
sustaining foreign operations and the translation of transactions that hedge the consolidated entity’s net investment
in foreign operations or the translation of foreign currency monetary items forrtiing part of the net investment in self

sustaining operations, net of related income tax expense/benefit.

Other capital reserves and general reserve

The amounts standing to the credit of other capital reserves and the gencral reserve resuited from historicai transactions.
These balances arce available for transfer into retained earnings.
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Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2002 200i1 2000 2002 200!
NOTE 19. ACCUMULATED LOSSES ‘
Accumulated Tosses at beginning of yeur (378.8) (467.:3) (549.5) (492.8) (488.7)
Net profit/(loss) attributable to Burng, Philp & Company
Limited shareholders 146.2 885 82.2 16.9 @.1)
Dividends paid or payable — CP Shares (a) (15.9) - - (15.9) -~
Accumulated losses at end of year (248.5) (378:8) (467.3) (491.8) (492.8)
(a) Derails of dividends paid or payable on
CP Shares are:
Paid 2 Qctober 2001 0.31438 cents per share
(franked amount per share 0,3143§ cents) 2.5 - - 2.5) -
Paid 31 December 2001 0.55480 cunts per shate
(franked amount per share 0.55480) cents) (4.4) - - (4.4) -
Paid 2 April 2002 0.56710 cents par share
(franked amount per share 0.07474 cents per share) (4.6) - - (4.6) -
Provided 30 June 2002 and paid 1 July 2002
0.55480 cents per share (unfranked) @.4) — - “4.4D —
(15.9) (= — (15.9) —
NOTE 20. OUTSIDE EQUITY INTERESTS
Outside equity interests in controlled <ntities comprize:
Interest in retained profits at begitining of year 4.2 3.6 3.9 - -
Interest in profit from ordinary activities after
related income tax expense 3.3 2.0 1.3 - -
Interest in dividends paid (1.1 (1.4) (1.8) - -
Interest in retained profits at end of year 6.4 42 3.6 - -
Interest in contributed equity 13.9 13.3 8.8 - -
Interest in reserves (1.4) 1,7 6.2 - —
Total outside equity interests 18.9 25.2 18.6 - -
Burns, Philp & Company Limited and its Congrolled Entities — 2002 Annusl Repeort 59
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Notes to the Financial Statements {tontinued)

Burns, Philp &

Consoli.jdated Company Limited
AS million 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
NOTE 21. TOTAL EQUITY
Total cquity at beginning of year 271.9 129.6 33.6 139.1 111.0
Total changes in equity attributable to 3umns, Philp
& Company Limited shareholders recognised
in statements of financial performancs (30.8) 109.5 94.8 16.9 @1
Transactions with Burns, Philp )
& Company Limited sharcholders as owners:
Contributions of equity (refer note 17) 254.6 322 1.6 2546 32.2
Dividends paid or payable — CP Shares (15.9) - - (15.9) -
Total changes in outside cquity interesls (6.3) 6.6 (0.4) — -
Total equity at end of year 479.5 277.9 129.6 394.7 139.1
NOTE 22, COMMITMENTS
Capital expendilure commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at balance date
but not provided for:
Payable within 1 year 123 18:8 9.9 - -
Operating lease commitments (a)
Aggregate amount contracted for at balance date
but not provided for:
Payable within 1 year 6.1 73.2 6.5 0.1 0.2
Payable between 1 and 2 years 5.2 5.2 3.6 - 0.1
Payable between 2 and 3 yeats a6 4.3 2.7 - -
Payable between 3 and 4 years 15 2.5 2.0 - —
Payable between 4 and 5 years 2.1 1.2 1.2 - -
Payable after S years 14.6 2.1 2.1 — -
Total operating lease commitments 34.1 22.5 18.1 0.1 0.3

(2) The consolidated entity leases property under non cancellable operating leases expiring from 1 to 20 years. Leases

generally provide the consolidated entity with a right of renewal at which time all terms are tenegotiated. Lease payments
comprise a base amount plus an incrementsl contingent rental. Contingent rentals arc based on either movements in
consumer prices indices or operating criteria.
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NOTE 23. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a) The consolidated entity is subject to litigation in the ordinary course of operﬂtion{s, but having considered advice does not
believe that it is engaged in any legal proceedings which would be likely to have & material effect on its business, financial
position or results of operations. '

{(b) As part of the security arrangements entered into with the consolidated entity’s financicrs (refer note 15 (c)), Burns,
Philp & Company Limited entered into a Deed of Guarantee and Indemnity whereby it (and certain controlled entities)
guaranteed payment of amounts owing under certain financing documents (including those facilities the subject of the
Override Agrccment and the 7.5% Notes Trust Deed). The total amount owing by its controlled entities as at 30 June 2002
is $1,655.5 million (2001 — $1,297 8 million; 2000 — $1,206.2 million),

The Deed of Guarantee and Indemmuity continues in place for the benefit of the financiers party to the Senior Funding
Agreement, notwithstanding the termination of the Override Agresment and the repayment of the 7.5% Notes,

(c) Pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418 dated 13 Aﬁgust 1998 certain wholly owned subsidiaries listed in note 30
are relieved from the Corporations Act 2001 requitements for preparation, audit and lodgement of financial reports.

It is a condition of the Class Order that the Company and each of the subsidiaries enter into a Deed of Cross Guarantee.
The effect of the Deed is that the Company guarantees to each creditor payment in full of any debt in the event of winding
up of any of the subsidiaries under ccrtain provisions ot the Corporations Act 2001. 1f a winding up occurs under other
provisions of the Law, the Company will only be liable in the event that after six;months any creditor has not been paid

in full. The subsidiaries have also given similar guarantees in the event that the Company is wound up.

A consolidated statement of financial performance for the year ended 30 June 2002 and a consolidated statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2002, comprising the Company and subsidiarics which are a party to the Deed, after
eliminating all transactions between parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee, at 30 June 2002 are set out on page 62.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 23. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

AS million ‘ 2002 2001 2000
Statements of Financial Performance

Profit from ordinary activitics befare income tax benefit/(expense) 24.2 92.5 108.8
Income tax benefit/(expense) relating ¢» profit from erdinary activities 23 (2.6) (0.8)
Profit from ordinary activities after related income tax benefit/(expense) _ 265 89.9 108.0
Statements of Financial Position

Cash assets 23.5 0.9 1.8
Receivables 142.3 28.6 '28.9
Inventories 35 2.1 2.2
Other asscts ' 3.0 1.1 0.5
Total current assets _ 172.3 32.7 33.4
Investments : 712.6 871.5 810.7
Property, plant and equipment 19.0 22,2 24.2
Intangible asscts 9.4 14.1 14.8
Other assets 20.6 2.3 1.2
Total non current assets ‘ 761.6 910.1 850.9
Total assets ‘ 933.9 942.8 884.3
Payables : 314.6 415.6 497.3
Interest bearing liabilities : - 0.8 0.8
Provisions 11.4 9.9 11.8
Total current liabilities ) 326.0 426.3 509.9
Interest bearing liabilities ) - 13.5 13.6
Provisions 0.9 5.6 6.3
Total non current liabilities 0.9 19.1 19.9
Total liabilities 326.9 4454 529.8
Net assets ’ 607.0 497.4 354.5
Contributed equity 868.3 613.7 581.5
Reserves and accumulated losses ) ‘ (261.3) (116.3) (227.0)
Total equity 607.0 497.4 354.5
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NOTE 24. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Business and geographic segments

The Group operates in four main busiriess segments, with additional insignificant acﬁﬁty segmented in Other and Corporate,
These business segments were identifizd based on the nature of the products provided and services rendered. The Group also
operates in four main geographic regions. Management selected these segments for internal reporting purposes and has
organised its enterprise around these products and services and geographic areas.

Business segnent Geographic segment Products and services

Yeast/Bakery North America Bakers' yeast and bakers’ ingredients — industrial and
South America consumer yeast, yeast extradts and bakery ingredients
Europe :
Asia Pacific

Herbs and Spices North America Sourcing, grinding, blending, packaging and
Asia Pacific distribution of herbs and spices

Vinegar North America Industrial vinegar

Terminals Asia Pacifie Bulk liquid storage

Other Asia Pacific Various ‘

Corporate/T&D North America Administration and technolégy and devclopment
Europe

Asia Pacific

Major customers

No single customer represents 10% or more of the Group's consalidated revenue,

Burns, Philp & Company Limited and its Contrplled Entities — 2002 Annual Report 63
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

NOTE 24. SEGMENT INFORMATEON (CONTINUED)

Primary reporting by business segment 1
Y‘eastlBakery

North South Asia
AS million America America Europe Pacific Total
2002
Revenue

External segment revenue from sale

of goods and rendering of services" 360.8 1674 163.5 142.3 834.0
Interest revenue "

Other unallocated revenue

Total revenue from ordinary activities

Result

Segment reault 584 251 . 294 20.2 133.1
Share of net profits of associates — 20 4.4 3.7 10.1
EBIT 58.4 27.1 33.8 23.9 143.2

Net interest expense

Profit from ordinary activitics before income tax
Income tax benefit

Profit from ordinary sctivities after income tax
Outside equity interests

Net profit

The following non cash expense items were
included in segment result above:

Depreciation and amortisation

(excluding prepaid slotting allowances) (22.1) az.1) (11.4) 8.9) (54.0)
Amortisation of prepaid slotting allowances - - - - -

Net expense from movements in provisions** (3.0) (3.6) .2) 2.7 11.5)
Individually significant items

— Provision for Oakland closure costs (25.1) - - - (25.1)
— Provision for amounts due by Kmart USA - - - - -

Asscts :

Segment assets 389.8 1353 222.4 206.9 954.4

Equity accounted investments - 109 - 253 22.4 58.6

Unallocated assets )

Consolidated total assets 389.8 146.2 247.7 229.3 1,013.0

Liabilities '

Segment liabilities 50.5 16.8 44.7 25.5 1375

Unallocated liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities 50.5 16.8 44.7 25.5 131.5

Acquisitions of non current assets during year 8.4 24,7 11.1 18.0 62.2

* There were no significant inter-segment sales.

**Excluding individually significant items,
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Herbs & Vinegar  Terminals Other Corporate Consolidated;
Spices /T&D Total

439.5 84.8 29.9 34 - 1,391.6
7.0

6.4

1,405.0

44.6 10.9 7.9 0.1 (19.9) 176.7
- - - - — 10.1

44.6 10.9 7.0 0.1 (19.9) 186.8

(65.9)
120.9
28.6
149.5
(3.3)
146.2

(1.5) 4.0) (6.2) (0.2) (0.6) (72.5)
(32.5) - - - - (32.5)
(4.5) 1.9 3.7 - (3.9) (24.6)

- _ - - - (25.1)
(10.1) - - - (10.1)

229.3 83.9 54.3 2.8 ns 1,396.2
- - - - - 58.6
909.7

2293 83.9 54.3 2.8 71.5 2,364.5

329 7.3 7.8 0.5 18.1 204.1
1,680.9

32.9 73 7.8 0.5 18.3 1,885.0

11.1 6.3 5.8 0.1 0.1 85.3
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 24. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Primary reporting by business segment (continued)

: Yeast/Bakery
North South Asia
AS million America America ~ Europe Pacific Total .
2001 '
Revenue

External segment revenue from sale :

of goods and rendering of services® 353.4 223.8 . 1447 135.8 857.7
Interest revenue '

Other unallocated revenue :

Total revenue from ordinary activities

Result
Scgment result 69.1 19.5 ~ 26.9 18.7 134.2
Share of net profits of associates — 2.0 . 5.7 4.7 12.4

EBIT 69.1 21.5 32.6 234 146.6
Net interest expense :

Profit from ordinary activities before income tax

Income 1ax (expense)

Profit from ordinary activities after income tax

Ouiside equity interests

Net profit

The following non cash expense iterns were
included in segment result above:
Depreciation and amortisation

(excluding prepaid slotting allowances) (24.0) (15.4) (10.3) (8.4) (58.1)
Amortisation of prepaid slotting allowunces - - - - —
Net expense fiom movements in provisions (3.3) (1.3) (0.6) 2.4) (7.6)
Assels ,

Segment assets 465.4 347.2 205.2 207.6 1,225.4

Equity accounted investments - 134 29.0 24.5 66.9

Unallocated asscts

Consolidated total asscts ' 465.4 3606 2342 232.1 1,292.3

Lisbllities ‘

Segment liabilities 47.0 445 37.8 25.3 154.6

Unallocated liabilities f

Consolidated total liabilities 47.0 445 37.8 25.3 154.6

Acquisitions of non current assets during year 29.5 202 14.4 14.1 782

®* There were no significant intar-segment sales.

i
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Herbs &
Spices

Vinegar

Terminals

Other

Corporate Consolidated.

IT&D

Total

438.9

333

89.6

9.5

30.7

4.7

0.3

(15.5)

1,421.6
13.0
18.9

1,453.5

173.0
12.4

333

(15.8)

185.4

(2.0)
(24.2)
(8.1

253.3

&7

(1.5)

824

0.1)

4.0

(0.4)

3.0

209

(82.8)
102.6

(12.1) |
90.5 |
2.0) !

885

(76.5)
(24.2)
(16.9)

1,635.5
66.9
158.4

253.3

82.4

4.5

4.0

20.9

1,860.8

455

83

5.6

1.2

321

247.3
1,335.6

45.%

8.3

3.0

1.2

32.1

1,582.9

3.5

35

33

03

88.8

iy
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Notes to the Financial Statements {:ontinued)

NOTE 24. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Primary reporting by business segment (continued) .
| Yeast/Bakery

South Asia
America Europe Pacific Total

North

AS million America

2000
Revenue

External segment revenue from sale
of goods and rendering of services®

Interest revenue
Other unallocated revenuc
Total revenue from ordinary activities

Result

Segment result

Share of net profits of associates

EBIT

Net interest expense

Profit from ordinary activities before incorne tax
Income tax (expense)

Profit from ordinary activitics after insome tax
QOutside equity interests

Net profit

The following non cash expense items were
included in segment result above:

Depreciation and amortisation

(excluding prepaid slotting allowances)

Amortisation of prepaid slotting allowances

Net expense from movements in provisions
Individually significant item:

— Reassessment of carrying value of tion current assets

Asscts

Segment assets

Equity accounted investments
Unallocated assets
Consclidated total assets
Liabilities

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Consolidated total liabilities

Acquisitions of non current assets during year

* There were na significant inter-scgment sales
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41.0

204.2

20.3
1.7

129.4

29.0
5.5

118.0

15.1
4.4

764.8

105.4
11.6

4]1.0

22.0

34.5

19.5

117.0

(25.9)
3.4)

(24.9)

380.4

(15.8)
(0.2)

26

2933
12.7

CAY

(2.4)

199.4
26.6

(7.5)
1.3)

0.2)

1704
18.8

(53.3)
(1.3)

(27.7)

1,043.5
58.1

380.4

306.0

226.0

{89.2

1,101.6

47.7

321

384

16.7

134.9

47.7 .

3z2.1

384

16.7

134.9

10.2

8.6

'
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Herbs & Vinegar  Terminals Other Corporate ConsolidatedE
Spices IT&D Total
404.5 822 30.1 47 - 1,2863

95
7.4
1,303.6
714 4.0 12.7 0.3 (26.3) 167.5
— — e - 11.6
71.4 4.0 12.7 0.3 (26.3) 179.1
' (81.0)
98.1
(14.4)
83.7
(1.5)
822
(1.6) (4.4) (5.2) 0.1 0.4) (71.0)
(27.6) - - - - (27.6)
(3.3) (0.9) ©.7 - (6.2) (18.4)
380 .1 - ~ - 52
206.2 72.8 50.6 34 18.2 1,394.7 .
- - - - - 58.1
143.9
206.2 72.8 50.6 34 18.2 1,596.7
47.1 7.3 3.8 0.8 27.8 221.7
1,245.4
47.1 7.3 3.8 0.8 27.8 1,467.1
1.8 1.6 38 - - 38.2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 24. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Secondary reporting by geographical segment ;

Norxth South: Asia  Consolidated

AS million America America Eurgpe Pacific Total
2002 '

Revenue !

External segment revenue from sale :

of goods and rendering of services” 88s.1 1674 163.5 175.6 1,391.6
Interest revenue : 7.0
Other unallocated revenue : 6.4
Total revenue from ordinary activities - . . 1,405.0
Result !

Segment result 108.6 2511 29.9 13.1 176.7
Share of net profits of associates - 20 4.4 3.7 10.1
EBIT 108.6 27:1 343 16.8 186.8
Assets

Segment assets 722.6 1353 2299 308.4 1,396.2
Equity accounted investments - 109 25,3 22.4 58.6
Unallocated assets 909.7
Consolidated total assets 722.6 146i2 255.2 330.8 2.364.5
Acquisitions of non current assets during year 25.8 2417 11.1 23.7 85.3
2001

Revenue

External segment revenue from sale . !

of goods and rendering of services® 881.9 2238 144.7 171.2 1,421.6
Interest revenue ' 13.0
Other unallocated revenue 18.9
Total revenuce from ordinary activities . 1,453.5
Result i

Segment result 103.0 193,4 279 227 173.0
Share of net profits of associates - 21 5.7 4.6 12.4
EBIT 103.0 21.5 33.6 27.3 185.4
Assets .

Segment assets 805.1 3472 211.8 2714 1,635.5
Equity accounted investments - 13.4 29.0 24.5 66.9
Unallocated assets ' 158.4
Consolidated total assets 805.1 360.6 240.8 295.9 1,860.8
Acquisitions of non current assets during year 36.5 20:.2 144 17.7 88.8

* There were o significant intet-segtnent sales. ;
;
13
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North South! Asia Consolidated

ASY million America America Europe Pacific Total
2000 i

Revenuce i

External segment revenuc from sale .

of goods and rendering of services® 799.9 2042 129.4 152.8 1,286.3
Interest revenue . 9.9
Other unallocated revenue : 7.4
Totsl revenue from ordinary activities 1,303.6
Result |

Segment result 114.8 20.3 21.7 10.7 167.5
Share of net profits of associates - 1.7 5.5 4.4 : 11.6
EBIT ' 114.8 220 27.2 15.1 179.1
Asscts

Segment assets 662.1 29333 203.1 2362 1.394.7
Equity accounted investments - 12:7 26.6 18.8 58.1
Unallocated assets . 143.9
Consolidated total assets 6652.1 306/0 2297 255.0 1,596.7

Acquisitions of non current assets during year 13.6 8is 4,5 11.6 38.2

* There weee o significant inter-segment sales,

{
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

NOTE 24. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Additional geographical segment information by country

United ; Consolidated
AS million States Argentina Australia Other Total
2002 '
Revenue
External segment revenue from sale .
of goods and rendering of services” 827.8 1232 50.3 390.6 1,391.6
Interest revenue 7.0
Other unallocated revenue 6.4
Total revenue from ordinary activities 1,405.0
Long-lived assets ‘
Property, plant and equipment 201.8 289 57.3 289.2 577.2
Intangibles , 180.7 154 94 1139 3194
Total long-lived assets 382.5 443 667 _ 403.1 896.6
2001 '
Revenue
External segment revenue from sale .
of goods and rendering of services® 811.5 170:7 51.6  387.8 1,421.6
Interest revenue . 13.0
Other unallocated revenue 18.9
Total revetiue from ordinary activities i 1,453.5
Long-lived asscts :
Property, plant and equipment 245.6 99;;2 62.1 297.2 704.1
Intangibles 206.3 67.9 9.7 123.6 407.5
Total long-lived assets 4519 167:1 71.8 420.8 1,111.6
2000
Revenue
External segment revenue from sale .
of goods and rendering of services” 739.4 155.3 55.7 3359 1,286.3
Interest revenue : 9.9
Other unallocated revenue : 74
Total revenue from ordinary activities : 1,303.6
Long-lived assets :
Property. plant and equipment 2179 86.6 65.8 245.6 6159
{ntangibles 180.4 46.7 100 1179 355.0
Total long-lived assets 398.3 75.8 363.5 970.9

* There were no significant intzr-segment sales.

1333
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NOTE 25. DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS

Terminals and Vinegar business segments

On 18 April 2002 the Board announced its plan to sell the Australasian Tetminals DlVlblOn and the North American Vinegar
Division.

These Divisions are separately reported as business segments in note 24, Additional ﬁna.ncml information in respect of these
business segments is set out below:

Terminals : Vinegar
A3 million 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
Financial performance information ;
for the year ended 30 June .
Revenue from ordinary activities 31.0 31.3 30.8 84.8 89.6 82.2
Expenses from ordinary activities . (23.1) (20.1) (18.1) (73.9) (80.1) (78.2)
Segment result (EBIT) 7.9 11.2 12.7 10.9 9.5 4.0
Net interest revenue 0.1 - — 0.1 0.1 0.1
Prolit from ordinary activities
before income tax 8.0 112 127 11.0 9.6 1.1
Income tax expense (0.6) (0.6) (0‘3,5) - - -
Net profit 7.4 10.6 12.2 11.0 9.6 4.1
Financial position information
as at 30 June ;
Total assets ‘ 54.3 49.5 50i6 83.9 324 72.8
Total liabilities 9.4 6.5 46 7.3 8.3 7.3
Net asscts 44.9 43.0 4610 76.6 74.1 65.5
Cash flow information for ,
the year ended 30 June .
Net cash provided by operating activities 11.8 17.6 16;8 14.6 13.2 11.3
Net cash (used in) investing activities (5.4) (3.3) (3i9) (6.3) (3.5) (L.6)

Net increase in cash held 6.4 14.3 12i9 8.3 9,7 9.7

On 7 August 2002 the Company annouaced that it had cntered into an agreement to Szell the Terminals Division to subsidiaries
of Kaneb Pipe Line Operating Partnership LP for anticipated sale proceeds of $83 million. Completion of the sale is conditional
on obtaining a number of third party consents, including New Zealand Overseas Investment Commission approval and certain
lessors’ approvals. It is anticipated that these consents will be obtained and the sale completed ptior to the end of Septemnber
2002, The financisl effect of entering into this conditional sale has not been bmughl to account in the financial staternents for
the year ended 30 June 2002.

4

On 23 August 2002 the Company entered into an agreement for the sale of the Nortlh American Vinegar Division to Swander
Pace Capital L.L.C. fof anticipated prcceeds of $88 million. Completion of the sale is conditional on satisfaction of usual
closing conditions, including the purct.aser obtaining financing for the acquisition and ccrtain third party consents. It is
anticipated the sale will be completed by the end of September 2002. The financial gffect of entering into this conditional
sale has not been brought to account in the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2002,

!
- !
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Notes to the Financial Statements {rontinued)

NOTE 26. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Classification of securities as ordinary shares

The following securities have been classified as ordinary shares and included in basi;: earnings pet shate:

{(a) Ordinary shares. '

Classification of securities as potential ordinary shares :

The following securities have been classified as potential ordinary shares and mcluded in diluted ¢arnings per share anly:
(a) 2003 Options outstanding (rcfer note 17 for further details).
(b) CP Shares (refer note 17 for further details).

Earnings reconciliation . Consolidated
’ 2002 2001 2000
: A3 million AS million A3 million
Net profit } 149.5 90.5 83.7
Net prafit attributable to outside equity interests I (3.3) (2.0) (1.5)
: 146.2 88.5 82.2
Less: CP Shares dividends ‘ (15.9) - -
Basic earnings ' 130.3 88.5 82.2
Add: CP Shares dividends 15.9 - -
Diluted earnings 146.2 88.5 82.2
Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator ' Shares Shares Shares
: (million) {rnillion) (million)
Number for basic earnings per share 751.2 648.6 532.8
Adjust for:
Effect of 2003 Options ' 850.7 826.0 607.9
Effect of CP Shares ' 701.4 — -
Number for diluted earnings per share ) 2,303.3 1,474.6 1,140.7

i

During the current year 101.1 million (2001 = 161.1 million; 2000 - 8.2 million) 2093 Options were converted to ordinary
shares. The diluted EPS calculation includes that portion of these options assumed to be issucd for nil consideration, weighted
with reference to the date of conversion. The weighted average number included is 33 9 million (2001 — 35.6 million;

2000 — 2.9 million).

From 1 July 2002 to 22 August 2002, 66,802 2003 Options and 1,200 CP Shares were converted to ordinary shares. These
shares have not been included in the calculation of basic EPS as at 30 June 2002.

The potential ordinaty shares in Conversion Bonds (35.5 million; 2001 — 33.9 mnllmn 2000 — 33.9 million), incentive
plan options (0.1 million; 200! — 0.8 muillion; 2000 — 1.1 million) and Estate Moﬁgage Notes (Nil; 2001 ~ 12.0 million;
2000 — 12.0 million) have not been included in the calculation of diluted EPS as the’y are not dilutive. Full details of these
scouritics arc sct out in note 17.
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|

. Burns, Philp &
Consolidated Company Limited

AS$ millien 2002 20(.!:1 2000 2002 2001
NOTE 27. RELATED PARTIES !

Amounts rececivable from related parties

Current:

Associates 1.8 36 4.0 - 0.2
Wholly owned controlled entities - - - 251.5 44.0
Directars - — 0.1 - -

Amounts payable to related parties :

Current:
Associates 0.3 03 - - -
Wholly owned controlled entities - — - 3.7 43.0

Transactions with related parties

Dividends received from wholly owned

controlled entities -

Interest received from wholly owned

controlled entities -

Management and guarantee fees received
from wholly owned controlled entities - - - 4.7 11.1

- - 16.0 -

- - 9.0 0.5

Directors and director related entitics

The names of persons who held the office of Director of Burng, Philp & Company ILimited during the year are:
A G McGregor, M D I Burrows, T J Degnan, G R Hart and ¥ W Sruith. ﬁ

Information on the remuneration of Dircctors is disclosed in note 29.
I

i

At 30 June 2002 loans to directors amwunted to $3,771 (2001 — $7,039; 2000 - 561{544). During the year, loan repayments
of $2,563 (2001 - $55,286; 2000 — $2,664) and interest payments of $382 (2001 — $44; 2000 — §400) wete received in

relation to directors” leans.

Dircctors® loans

i
Directors’ and director related entities’ holdings of shares and share options
Details of Directors’ and director related entities' share and option holdings in Burn§, Philp & Company Limited at the
reporting date and details of movements in these holdings during the period are set out on page 76. In respect of these holdings,
dividends are payable to Directors and director related entities on the same terms and conditions as other sharcholders.

3
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

NOTE 27. RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

Number of Ordinary Shares, CP Shares and 2003 Options 2002 2001 2000
Ordinary Shares

Balance at beginning of year 107,480,720 ; 107,480,720 106,365,720
Ordinary shares acquired during the year - - 1,115,000
Balance at end of year and 22 August 2002 107,480,720 : 107,480,720 107,480,720
CP Shares '

Balance at beginning of year - _ _
CP Shares acquired during the year $38,376,663 | - -
Balance at end of year and 22 August 2002 538,376,663 - —
2003 Options” :

Balance at beginning of year 987,033,586 i 987,033,586 577,763,305
2003 Options acquired during the year - - 409,270,281
Balance at end of year and 22 August 2002 987,033,586 987,033,586 987,033,586

* No other options are held by Directors or director-related entitics, !

Other directors’ and director related entities’ transactions E

G R Hart is managing director and substantial shareholder of Rank Group Limited (i%ank) During the year, the Company paid
to Rank $1,349,000 (2001 — $1,542,00:); 2000 — $1,293,000) in reimbursement of saﬂaneq and expenses of employees of Rank
who performed services for the Company during the year, ;
Each of the Directors of Burns, Philp 8¢ Company Limited hold ordinary shaces, 20{@3 Options and CP Shares as detailed on
page 15 of the Directors’ Report. Each of the Directors will participate in benefits which they are entitled to receive as a result
of holding the erdinary shares, 2003 Ciptions and CP Shares in accordance with their relevant terms of issue.

From time to time Directors of the Corapany, directors of its controlled entities, or d;irector related entitics, may purchase
goods from the consolidated entity. These purchases are on the same tetms and conditions as the consolidated entity’s
employees or customers and are trivial in nature.

Controlled entities

Information relating to controlled entities is set out in note 30.

|
3
1
t
>
1

f

Loans are provided to controlled entities at annual interest rates varying from 0% to commercial rates,

Details of dividends and interest transuactions between Burns, Philp & Company Limj'itcd and its controlled entities
are set out in note 2. ;
Associates :

Information relating to investments in and dividends received from associates is set éut in note 10.
Superannuation plans |
Information rclating to superannuation and pension plans is set out in note 28,

Materiality

In accordance with AASB 1017 Related Party Disclosures, 2ll transactions with du‘ectors and director related entities
have been disclosed. However, in tespect of other related parties, only material transactmns have been disclosed.

]

!

H
H

.
!
{
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NOTE 28, SUPERANNUATION PLANS :,

The consaolidated entity sponsors 4 (2001 — 4; 2000 — 4) defined contribution and 5 (2001 ~5; 2000 - 6) defined benefit
employee supcrannuation plans.

Superannuation plans have not been extended to some overscas controlled entities Where there arc suitable national plans
available. In Australia and New Zealand, Burns Philp’s employees are covered by defined contribution plans not sponsored
by the consolidated entity. i

Details of plans sponsored by the consolidated entity are set out below:
Date of Last

Country Fund Benefit Type Actuarial Valuation

Canada Burns Philp Food Liraited Retirement Accumulation Not required
Savings Plan for Salaried Employcces ;

Canada Burns Philp Food Liraited Retirement Accumulation ' Not required
Savings Plan for Hourly Employees |

Gerrnany Firsorgeverein der Doutsche Hefewerke Defined Benefit l‘::Pcnsiou) 30 June 2002
GmbH e.V. :

USA Burns Philp Inc Retirement Plan Defined Benefit (EPcnsion) 30 June 2002
for Bargaining Unit Employees |

USA Bums Philp Inc Retirement Plan Defined Benefit (Pension) 30 June 2002
for Non Bargaining LInit Employees i

USA Burns Philp Inc. Savings Plan Accumulation I’ Not required

Usa Tone Brothers, Inc. Savings Plan Accumulation , Not required

USA Tone Brothers, Tnc, Plan Defined Benefit 4{Lump Sum) 30 Junc 2002

USA Tornie Brothers, Inc. Won Bargaining Defined Benefit Q?Lump Sum) 30 June 2002

Retirement Plan ;

Plan benefits consist of cither cash accumulation plans with defined contribution lcve]s or defined benefit plans with
& retirement benefit based on years of service and final average salary. ‘

In the case of defincd benefit plans, employer contributions are based on the advice iof the plans’ actuaries. Employee

contributions are based on various percentages of their gross salaries. After serving a qualifying period, all emplovees are
entitled to benefits on retiremeat, disability or death. In accordance with the variousiTrust Deeds, the Company and other
controlled entities are under no legal ¢hligalion to make up any shortfall in the plan‘i assets to meet payments due to

employees. i
Employer contributions to defined ben:fit plans during the year ended 30 June 2002: were $6.7 million
(2001 — $5.8 million; 2000 — §4.1 miltion). '

'

Employer contributions to defined conribution plans during the year ended 30 June 2002 were $2.4 million
(2001 — $2.8 million; 2000 — $2.5 miillion).

Burns, Philp & Company Limited and its Contmilled Entities ~ 2002 Annual Report i
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

NOTE 28. SUPERANNUATION PLANS (CONTINUED)

The accrued benefits, plan assets at net markcet value and vested benefits of the defined benefit plans as per the most recent
30 June financial staternents of the plans are set out in the table below. Accrued benefits are benefits which the plans are
presently obliged to pay at some future date, as a result of membership of the plans. chstcd benefits are benefits which are
not conditional upon the continued membership of the plans or any factor, other than resignation from the plans.

The Directors, based on the advice of the trustees of the defined benefit plans, are nEt awarc of any changes in circumstances

since the date of the most recent financial statements of the plans which would have a material impact on the overall financial
position of the plans.

'
i

Defined Benefit Plans |

Acerued Plan Assets at . Excess Vested
Renefits Net Market Value i (Deficit) Benefits

AS$ million 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000 200;’; 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
Fiirsorgeverein der :

Deutsche Hefewerke

GmbH e.V. (a) 19.2 18.0 161 25 2.5 26 (1677) (155) (13.5) 176 165 156
Burns Philp Inc. Retirement ‘
Plan for Bargaining Unit ;
Employees (a) 5.6 5.5 4.1 4.1 49 46 (1.5 (0.6) 0.5 5% 53 41

|
3
!
1

Bums Philp Inc. Retirement
Plan for Non Bargaining

Unit Employees (1) 28.7 282 283 168 205 249 (11.‘):) (8.7 ((B4) 226 225 21.6
i
Tone Brothers, Inc, Plan 7.4 5.3 3.6 9.8 7.5 4.4 2.4 2.2 0.8 7.0 4.7 3.4

1

Tonc Brothers, Inc. ,
Non Bargaining ‘
Retirement Plan (b) 7.8 6.0 - 5.0 43

Burns Philp (New Zcaland)
Limited Group
Superannuation Plan (c) - - 1.5 - - 2.9

Burns Philp (UK)
Pension Plan (d) - - 37 0.2 0.2 4.5 0.

@8 (1.7 - 40 32 -

1.4 - - 1.5

-
¥

0.2 0.8 - - 36

SN & S

(2) Adequate provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements for the deficit.

(b) On | December 2000 Tone Brothers, Inc. employees were transferred into this p]'an from the Burmns Philp Inc. Retirement
Plan for Non Bargaining Unit Employees. Adequate provision hus been made in thc consolidated financial statements
for the deficit.

a
(c) The Burns Philp (New Zealand) Limited Group Superannuation Plan was, dunng:., x the year ended 30 Junc 2001, replaced

by a new plan operated by AMP. This plan is a defined contribution plan and cnly Burns Philp’s New Zealand employees
are ¢ligible to join the plan. i

(d) All members are now covercd by a private pension arrangement and the plan is m the process of being wound up.

T8 Burns, Philp & Company Limited and its Consrolled Entities — 2002 Apnnual Rq)on
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NOTE 29. DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVES® REMUNERATION

Directers® income }

The number of Directors of the Compiny whose income from the Company or any rEelated party falls within the following

bands was: i
’ Burns, Philp &
. : Company Limited
Number of Directors ‘ 2002 2001
A$’000 }
0o- 10 ! 1 1
50 - 60 ﬁ 2 2
140 - 150 5 1 -
150 — 160 '. - 1
3,010 - 3,020 i - 1
3,880 — 3,890 1 -
i
{ Burns, Philp &
Consoljdated Company Limited
A%°000 2002 20(51 2000 2002 2001
Total income paid or payable, or otherwise made :
available to all Directors of the Company and ;
directors of controlled entitics from the |
Company or any related party (a) 17,549 16,650 16,170 4,138 3,277

i
() The maximum arnount of fees paysable to non executive Directors of Burns, Philp & Compadny Limited, in aggregate, i3
$450,000 (exclusive of retirement payments). This was approved at the 1993 Annual General Meeting. For the year to
30 June 2002, the basic fee paid ta a non executive Director was $45,000, cxccpé; for the Deputy Chairman who was not
paid a fee. The Chairman was paid three times the basic fee, ic $135,000 plus stitutory superannuation contribution.

:
i
i
)
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

NOTE 29. DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVES’ REMUNERATION (CONTIN".‘[‘ED)

Executives’ remuneration

(
t

The remuneration of exccutives who work wholly or mainly outside Australia are not included in this disclosure, Executive
officers arc those officers involved in the strategic direction, gencral management or control of business at 3 Company ot
!

operating division level,

The number of executive officers of the Company and of controlled cntities, whose femuneration from the Company

1

or related parties and from entities in the consclidated entity, falls within the following bands was:

!

Consol%dated

Burns, Philp &

Company Limited
Number of Australian Executives 2002 20(;1 2000 2002 2001
AS7000 :
110 — 120 1 [ - - -
120 — 130 - li‘ 1 - -
140 — 150 - ' - - -
150 — 160 1 - - - -
160 — 170 - 1 - - _
190 — 200 1 i 1 - -
210 - 220 - i1 - - !
220 — 230 1 i1 4 1 -
230 — 240 - i1 1 — 1
240 — 250 - i - - -
250 - 260 1 - - 1 -
280 — 290 1 .‘ - 1 -
290 — 300 - ;—- 1 - -
310 — 320 - 12 - - 1
340 — 350 1 = - 1 -
370 - 380 1 1= - 1 -
410 — 420 - i - - 1
430 ~ 440 - o 2 - -
470 - 480 1 [_ - _
790 — 800 - i1 - - 1
2,590 - 2,600 - :— ] - -
3,010 - 3,020 - i1 - - 1
3,880 — 3,890 1 {— - 1 -
A$’000 '
Total income received, or due and receivable, from the Company, ‘
entities in the consolidated entity or related parties by executive ;
officers of the Company and of controlled entities whose :
income is $100,000 or more 6,310 6,1(5)3 5,223 5,845 5,001

80 Burns, Philp & Company Limited and its Controlled Entities — 2002 Annual chon;

dios4




12709 '02 THU 10:30 FAX

NOTE 30. CONTROLLED ENTITIES

)

Except where otherwise noted, controtled entities are wholly owned and carry on busmesq in the country of incorporation,

with investments in controlled entities comprising ordinary shares.

Controlled Entities at 30 June 2001 Country of
and 30 June 2002 Incorporation
Compania Argentina de Levaduras

SAIC(e){H(h) Argentina
Sudamericana de Levaduras SA

de Inversiones(f)(g) Argentina
Surgras SA(h) Argentina
Bevsel Pty Ltd(s) Australia
BPT South Pacific Pty Ltd(e) Australia
Bums Philp Camellia Pty Ltd(a)(b)(e) f)(g) Australia
Burns Philp Custodians Pty Ltd(a) Australia
Burns Philp Food Holdings Pty Ltd(a}b)(N{(g) Australia
Burns Philp Food Qverseas

Holdings Ltd(a)(b)(c){f)(g) Australia
Burns Philp Fooed Properties

Pty Ltd(a)(b)(e)}H(g) Australia
Burns Philp Food Scrvices

Pty Ltd(a)(b)}{(e)(f)}g) Australia
Burns Philp Hardware Holdings

Pty Ltd(a)(b)(c)(e) Australia
Burns Philp International

Investments Pty Ltd(s) Australia
Burns Philp Investments Pty Ltd(a)(bi(c){e) Australia
Burns Philp Microbiology Pty Ltd Australia
Burns Philp Middle East Pty Ltd(a)(t}{D(g) Australia
Bums Philp Overseas

Holdings Ltd(a)(b)(e)(f)(g} Australia
Burns Philp Pakistan Pty Ltd(a)(b)(f){g) Australia
Bumms Philp Shipping Holdings Pty Ltd(e) Australia
Burns Philp South America

Pty Ltd(a)(o)(H(g)(t) Australia
Burns Philp Technology Pty Ltd(a}(bif)(g) Australia
Burns Philp Technology & Development

Pty Led(a)(B)D(g) Australia
Burns Philp Treasury (Australia) Ltd(f)(g) Australia
E L Bell Pty Ltd(e) Australia
Indonesian Yeast Company Pty Ltd(ayb)(f)(g) Australia
Intcgrated Ingredients Indonesia Pty Ltd(a)(b) Australia
Intcgrated Ingredients Pty Lid(a)(b)(c) Australia
Mauri Fermentation Argentina

Pty Ltd(a}b)(f)(g) Australia
Mauri Fermentation Brazil Pty Ltd(aub)(D(g) Australia

Controlled Emiti'es at 30 June 2001

, Country of
and 30 June 2002 (continued) Incorporation
Mauri Fermentation Chile Pty Ltd(a)(b)(f)(g) Australia
Mauri Fermentatipn China Pty Ltd(a)(b)}(f)(g) Australia
Mauri Fermentation India Pty Ltd(a)(b)(f)(g) Australia
Mauri Fermentatipn Indonesia
Pty Ltd(a)(b)(f)(g) Australia

Mauri Fermentation Malaysia Pty Ltd(a)(b)(f)(g) Australia
Mauri Fermentatibn Philippines

Pty Ltd(a)(b)}(f)(g) Australis
Mauri Fermentation Vietnam

Pty Ltd(a)(b)(f)(2) Australia
Mauri Grocery Pty Litd(e) Australia
Mauti Integrated Ingredients

Pty Ltd(a)(b)(c)(e) Australia
Mauri Yeast Austtialia Pty Ltd(a)(b)(e)(f)(g) Australia
MBT Engineerinﬁ Pty Ltd(a)(b)(c) Australia
MBT Fabrication(Services Pty Ltd{a)(b) Australia
Nanged Pty Ltd : Australia
Terminals Pty Litd(a)(b){d)(f)(g) Australia
Bumns Philp A & B Ltd(i) Bangladesh
Mauri Brasil Induistria, Comercio E

Importacao Ltda(e)(f) Brazil
Burns Philp Food Ltd(e)()(g)(s) Canada
Burns Philp Chilé Inversiones Ltda Chile
Harbin Mauri Yeast Company Lid(j) China
Hebei Meuri Food Company Ltd(k) China
Panyu Meuti Foodd Company Ltd(l) China
Yantai Mauri Yeast Company Ltd(1) China
BEG France SARL(m) France
BEG Backhefe Export GmbH(m) Germany
Burns Philp Deutschland Export
Nahrungsmitiel-Vertriebsgesellschaft mbH Germany
Burns Philp Dem'ﬁchland GmbH(f)(g) Germany
Burns Philp Deutschland Grundbesitz

GmbH(eX(g) Germany
Deutsche Hefeweirke GmbH & Co oHG(eX(f)(g) Germany
Deutsche Hefewerke Verwaltungs GmbH(f)(g) Germany
Hefe-Patent GmHH(n) Germany
Burns Philp Indid (Private) Ltd India
Cochin Spices Private Ltd India
Mauri Yeast Indiz_i (Private) Ltd(p) India
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

NOTE 30. CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Controlled Entities at 30 June 2001 Country of
and 30 June 2002 (continued) Incorporation
Burns Philp Alimentos $ de RL de CY Mexico
Bums Philp Mexico, SA de CVY Mezxico
Bums Philp Netherlands

European Holdings BV(f)(g) The Netherlands
Burns Philp Treasury (Europe)

BV(f)(g) The Netherlands
BST (Auckland) Ltd()(g)(s) NZ
Bulk Storage Terminals Ltd(f)(g) Nz
Burns Philp (New Zealand) Ltd(=)(H)(s) NZ
New Zealand Food Industries Lid(e)(fi(g) NZ
Pinnacle NZ Ltd(s) Nz
Mauri Fermentos, SA(h) Portugal
Burns Philp Food SA()(g) Spain
Burns Philp Lanka (Private) Ltd Sri Lanka
Mauri Maya Sanayi AS Turkey
Burms Philp (U.K.) PLC(e)(f)(g)s) UK
Burns Philp Europe Ltd UK
Burns Philp Pension Plan Ltd UK
S. Hoffnung & Co (w) UK
Burns Philp Food Ins{e)(f)(g)(s) USA
Burns Philp Food North America Inc Usa
Burns Philp Inc(e)(H)(g) USA
Tone Brothers, Inc(e)(f)(g) USA
Fitamar SA(q) Uruguay
Levadura Uruguaya SA(f)(g)(h) Uruguay
Mauri-La Nga Fermentation Co Ltd(c) Vietham

Controlled Entities at 30 June 2001

‘ Country of
disposed of during the year Incorporation
Burns Philp Canada Inc(u) Canada
Burns Philp Shipping Agencies (HK) Ltd(v)  Hong Kong
Mauri Fermentatior) (Hong Kong) Ltd(v) Hong Kong
Burns Philp Custodians (NZ) Ltd(v) NZ
Juventa Ltd(v) ; NZ
Controlied Entities at 30 June 2001 and Country of
30 June 2002 in voluntary liguidation Incorporation
Burns Philp Nominges Pty Ltd Australia
Burns Philp Retail (Fiji) Pty Ltd Australia
Burns Philp Hardwtbr: Overseas
Heldings Pty Ltd | Australia
Burns Philp RightsiSale Service Pty Ltd Australia
Burns Philp Shipping Overseas
Holdings Pty Ltd : Australia
Burns Philp Shipping Overscas
Investments Pty Ltd Australia
Consolidated Stevetlores Holdings Pty Ltd Australia
Wyong Hardware & Building Supplies Pty Ltd Australia
Wyong Timber Milling Co Pty Lid Australia

Burns Philp Shipping Agencies (Fiji) Ltd Fiji

Burns Philp Shipping (Far East) Ltd(s) Hong Kong
Burns Philp Investinents (PNG) Ltd PNG
Burns Philp Investiments PLC UK
Burns Philp R&D Ltd(s) UK
Contraolled Entity.iacquired during the year

Burns Philp Capitai Pty Ltd(f)(r) Australia

(a) A party to a Deed of Cross Guarar.tee with Burns, Philp & Company Limited d‘ltcd 13 May 1992. Burns Philp
Custodians Pty Limited is the Trustee appointed under this Deed.

(b) Granted relief from specified accounting requirements in accordance with ASIC: Class Order 98/1418.

(c) Entered into a Deed of Revocation with Burns, Philp & Company Limited datcd 15 Moarch 2002 whersby the Deed
of Cross Guarantee will cease to apply to such company cffective 6 October 20(2.

(d) Entered into a Deed of Assumption with Burns, Philp & Company Limited and Burns Philp Custodiang Pty Limited
dated 21 November 2001, whereby such company was joined as a patty to the Deed of Cross Guarantee,

(e) Burns, Philp & Company Limited and (in some countries only) Burns Philp Fon:d Overseas Holdings Limited (BPFOSH)
and Burns Philp Treasury (Australia) Limited (BPTA) have ¢ntered into a Deed Poll whereby these controlled entities
have been released from a number of agreements (Upstrearn Undertakings) whereby pursuant to such Upstream
Undertakings these controlled entitics had formerly agreed to provide loans to E\ums Philp & Company Limited,

BPFOSH and BPTA.
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(f) As part of the security arrangements entered into with the consolidated entity’s tinanciers (refer note 15(c)), such
controlled entities entered iato or 3cceded to a Deed of Guarantee and Indemmity whereby such entities guaranteed
payment of amounts owing under certain financing documents (including those Facilities the subject of the Override
Agreement and the 7.5% Notes Ttust Deed). There is also an indetnnity inn support of this guarantee. The Deed of
Guarentee and Indemnity continues in place for the benefit of the financicrs party to the Senior Funding Agreement,
notwithstanding the termination of the Override Agreement and the repayment rJf' the 7.5% Notes.

{g) As part of the issue of the Senior Subordinated Notes (refer note 15(c)) such co1§m‘ollcd cntitics entered into an Indenture
wheteby the payment of principal and interest, and performance of all other obligations in respect of the Senior Subordinated
Notes, are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Burns, Philp & Company Limited and such controlled entities.

Ownership Interest at 30 June

2002 2001 2000 :
Yo % O/D i
hy 97 96 96
G 51 51 51
G) 85 85 85 i
(k) 90 90 S0 :
a0 60 60 60 ;
(m) 80 80 80 :
(m) 67 67 67
(o) 66 66 66 i
(p) 100 100 - |
(@ 96 96 - ;
(ry 100 - - . !

(s) Investment comprises ordinary and prefercnce shares.
(Y) Name changed during the year from Burns Philp Japan Pty Ltd.

(v) Bums Philp Canada Inc and Burns Philp Food Limited were amalgamated duri
is Burns Philp Food Limited,

(v) During the year, Burns Philp Shisping Agencics (HK) Ltd, Mauri Fermentation (Hong Kong) Ltd and Juventa Ltd were
voluntatily liquidated and Burns Philp Custodians (NZ) Ltd was voluntarily struck off. There was no profit or loss on the
voluntary liquidarion or striking off of these entities.

uring the year and the successor company

'
»
’
L

(w) Converted to an unlimited compuny during the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 31. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE

(a) On 9 September 2002 Burns Philp Treasury (Eurppe) BV, after having given noucc to the Trustee and holders of the Debt
Bonds on | August 2002, redcemed all of the outstanding Debt Bonds, Upon redemption of the Debt Bonds, the Debt
Bonds and the attached Conversion Bonds were cancelled (refer note 17 for further details).

(b) On 7 August 2002 the Company announced that it had entered into an agreement to sell the Terminals Division to
subsidiaries of Kaneb Pipe Line Cperating Partnership LP for anticipated sale proceeds of $83 million. Completion
of the sale is conditional on obtaiting a number of third party consents, includinig New Zealand Overseas Investment
Commission approval and certain lessors’ approvals. It is anticipated that these consents will be obtained and the sale
completed prior to the end of September 2002, The financisl effect of entering into this conditional sale has not been
brought to account in the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2002 (refer note 25 for further details).

¢) On 23 August 2002 the Company tntered into an agrecment for the sale of the T&ort‘h American Vinegar Division
to Swander Pace Capital L.L.C. for anticipated sale proceeds of $88 million. Completion of the sale is conditional on
satisfaction of usual closing conditions, including the purchaser obtaining financing for the acquisition and certain third
party consents. It is anticipated the sale will be completed by the end of September 2002. The financial effcct of entering
into this conditional sale has not bxen brought to account in the financial statements for the year ended 30 Junc 2002
(refer note 25 for further details). i
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NOTE 32. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE

Interest Rate Risk

The Group enters into interest rate swaps and forward rate agreements to manage cash flow risks associated with the intercst
rates on borrowings that arc floating.

Interest rate swap and forward rate agreements ':

Interest rate swaps allow the Group to swap floating rate borrowings into fixed rate$. Maturitics of swap contracts are
principally betwcen one and five years. ‘

Each contract involves quarterly or semi-annual payment or receipt of the net amount of interest. At 30 June 2002 the fixed
rates varied from 4.01% to 7.15% {2001 — 3.85% to 7.15%; 2000 — 3.85% to 8§, 16%) and the floating rates were at bank bill
rates plus a credit margin. i

The Group from time to time enters into forward rate agreements, with expiration térms ranging out to three years, to offset
changes in the rates paid on short terrn floating debt, No forward rate agreements were outstanding at year end (2001 —Nil;

2000 — Nil).

Interest rate risk exposure

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average mterest rate for classes of financial assets and

liabilities at 30 June is set out below.

Fixed Interest Maturing in

Floating 1year Overlyéar Morethan Non interest

AS million or less to S years S years bearing Total
2002
Financial assets {
Cash assets 923.6 - - - - 923.6
Receivables - - - - 162.2 162.2
Invesiments - - - — 6.7 6.7

923.6 - L= - 168.9 1,092.5
Weighted average interest rate 1.97% i
Financial lisbilities "
Senior indebtedness 756.5 - - - - 756.5
Debt Bonds - 1748 [ - - - 1748
Senior Subordinated Notes - - - 711.0 - 711.0
Bank overdrafts and other indebtedness 9.1 4.1 . - - 13.2
Payables - — P - — 146.0 146.0

765.6 178.9 f - 711.0 146.0 1,801,5
Interest rate swaps (392.2) 69.7 3225 - - -
Weighted average interest rate 4.46%  §5.52% 5.65% 9.75%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 32. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE (CO]‘?ITINUED)

Fixed Interest Maturing in
Floating Uyear Over1year More than Non interest

AS million or less to 5 years 5 years bearing Total

2001 ;'

Financial assets

Cash assets 218.2 - ‘- - - 218.2

Receivables - - - - 234.8 234.8

Inovestments - - - - 7.6 7.6
218.2 - G- — 242.4 460.6

Weighted average interest rate 4.60%

Financial liabilities

Senior indebtedness §95.0 2414 - - - 836.4
Debt Bonds - - 197.4 - - 1974
7.5% Notes - 260.9 53 - - 266.2
Bank overdrafts and other indebtedness 11.7 - - - - 1.7
Payables - - - - 174.7 174.7
606.7 502.3 202.7 - 174.7 1,486.4
Interest rate swaps (504.4) 56.5 4479 - - ~
Weighted average interest rate 5.38% 7.47% 5.67%
2000 ;
Financial assets i
Cash assets 188.9 - P - - 188.9
Receivables - - P - 191.7 191.7
Investments - - ' — 7.6 7.6
188.9 - . - - 199.3 388.2
Weighted average interest rate 5.96% :

Financial liabilities i

Senior indebtedness 538.6 7.4 20;2.5 - - 748.5
Debt Bonds - - 16172 - - 167.2
7.5% Notes - - 298.4 - -~ 2984
Bank overdrafts and other indebtedness 6.2 - P - - - 6.2
Payables - — P— - 154.4 154.4

544.8 7.4 668.1 - 154.4 1,374.7
Interest rate swaps (473.3) 5.6 442.7 25.0 ~ -

Weighted average interest rate 6.79% 7.50% 6.5:5% 5.75%

86 Burns, Philp & Company Limited and its Controlled Entities 2002 Annual Report




12/0¢ '02 THU 10:31 FAX [Goot

)

Foreign Exchange Risk :
The Group does not hedge its statement of financial position using derivative contracts

Credit Risk Exposure !.

Credit risk represents the loss that wonuld be recognised if counterparties failed to perform as contracted,

i
Recognised financial instruments H

The credit risk on financial assets, excluding investments, of the consolidated enntv which have been recognised on the
statement of financial position is the ¢arrying amounc, net of any provision for doubtful debts. The Group is not matetially
exposed to any individual customer.

Unrecognised financial instruments !

The credit risk on unrecognised derivative contracts is minimised as coumerpartles iare recognised financial intermediaries
with acceptable credit ratings determined by a recognised rating agency. Swap contracts ere subject to credit risk in relation to
the relevant counterparties, which are all large banks, The credit risk on swap contriacts is limited to the next amount to be
received from counterparties on contracts that arc favourable to the Group. There wias no accrued amount due to the Group at
30 June 2002 (2001 — Nil: 2000 —- $1.0 million).

Net Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Valuation approach

Net fair values of listed financial assets and liabilities are determined by referencc to the market price of these instruments
adjusted for transaction costs necessary (o realise the asset or settle the liability.

Recognised financial instruments

The carrying amounts and net fair velues of financjal assets and liabilities as at 30 Uu.nc are as follows:

Consolidated
Carrying Amounnt ! Net Fair Value

AS$ million 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
Financial assets :

Cash asscts 923.6 2182 188.9 923.6 218.2 188.9
Receivables 162.2 2348 18i1.7 162.2 234.8 1917
Investments 6.7 7.6 7.6 6.7 7.6 7.6
Financial liabilities :

Senior indebtedness 756.5 836.4 748.5 756.5 842.3 758.0
Debt Bonds 174.8 197.4 167.2 174.8 178.9 137.4
7.5% Notes - 266.2 298.4 - 352.7 253.6
Senior Subordinated Notes 711.0 - - 711.0 - -
Bank overdrafts and other indcbtedness 13.2 . 11.7 6.2 13.2 11.7 6.2
Payables 146.0 174.7 144.4 146.0 174.7 154.4

4
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) !

NOTE 32. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE (COﬁTINUED)
|

Unrecognised financial instruments i
The net fair values of unrecognised financial instruments held as at 30 June are as follows:

;

. : Consolidated
AS$ million 2002 2001 2000
Interest rate swaps — unrealised (loss)/gain (17.0) (4.3) 15.8

The valuations of unrecagnised financial instruments detailed in this note reflect the estimated amounts which the Group
expects to pay or receive to terminate the contracts (net of transaction costs) or repl'ace the contracts at their current market
rates as at the reporting date. This is bascd on independent market quotations and dEtermmed using standard valuation
techniques,

The unrealised loss (or “mark-to-mart:et”™) of $17.0 miilion (2001 — $4.3 niillion 10=$S; 2000 — $15.8 million gain) represents
the diffetence berween funding actions of the Group over time, compared to what ¢puld have been achieved if zll the funding
was rcncgotiated at year end. Profits :ind losses associated with the closure of interést rate derivative contracts during the year
have historically been taken to the stacemnent of financial performance at the time of closure as a credit or debit to borrowing
costs. There were no profits and losses associated with the closure of interest rate dnnvanve cantracts during the years ended
36 June 2000, 30 June 2001 and 30 June 2002. i

As interest rates are subject to volatility, the Group’s economic position on hedging transactions can change substantially

in line with interest rate movements. Ag the Group enters into these transactions fot hedging purposes and does tot actively
trade in these instruments, it is not appropriate to recognise the impact of marking to market the position existing at balance
date in the consolidated result.
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Directors’ Decla Em

1. In the opinion of the Directors of Burns, Philp & Company Limited (the Comp'iany):

(a) the financial statements and r.otes set out on pages 27 to 88 are in accordaice with the Corporations Act 2001,
including: !

(i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and consolidated entity as at 30 June 2002
and of their performance, as represented by the results of their operatio'{:ls and their cash flows, fot the year ended
on that date; and !

!
(i1} complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Comparny will be able to p:;y its debts as and when thecy become
due and payable. :

2. There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company and the subsidiariesiidentified in note 30 will be able to
meet any obligations or liabilitics to which they are or may become subject to by virtue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee
between the Company and those subsidiaries pursuant to ASIC Class Order 9841418,

1

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Dircctors.

Y e

Thomas J Degnan
Managing Dicector ;

Sydney, 10 Septemnber 2002
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1 :
Independent Au um i

TO THE MEMBERS OF BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED

1
Scope ;
We have audited the financial report of Burns, Philp & Company Limited (the Conﬁpany) for the financial year ended
30 June 2002, consisting of the statements of financial performance, statements of financial position, statements of cash
flows, accompanying notes | to 32, and the directors’ declaration, The financial report includes the consolidated finencial
statements of the consolidated entity, comprising the Company and the entities it wntrolled at the end of the year or from
time to time during the financial year The Company’s directors are responsible forlthe finsncial report, We have conducted
an independent audit of this financial report in order to express an opinion on it to ithc members of the Company.

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards toiprovide reasonable assurance whether

the financial report is free of material misstatement. Qur proceduyres included examiination, on a test basis, of cvidence
supporting the amounts and other dis::losures in the financial report, and the eveluition of accounting policies and significant
accounting estimates, These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion wWhether, in all tnaterial respects, the
financial report is presented fairly in accordance with Accounting Standards and other mandatory profcssional reporting
requirements in Australia and statutory requirements so as to present a view which!is consistent with our understanding

of the Company’s and the consolidated entity’s financial position, and pcrformancc' as represented by the results of their
operations and their cash flows,

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis.

!
Audit Opinion '

In our opinion, the financial report of Burns, Philp & Company Limited is in accordance with:
(a) the Corporations Act 2001, including: ;

(1) giving a true and fair view of “he Company’s and consolidated entity’s ﬁnancml position as at 30 June 2002
and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and :

(ii} complying with Accounting Srandards in Australia and the Corporations Rc:'gulatious 2001; and

(b) other mandatory professional reporting requircments in Australia. !

Kome AL il

KPMG Alan Walsb,
Partrer

Sydney, 10 September 2002
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e Vear Summey |

i
'
{
3

AS million unless indicated 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Statement of Financial Performance

Sales 1,391.6 1,42 @.6 1,286.3 1,373.0 1,856.7
EBIT (before individually significant items) 2220 185.4 173.9 172.7 142.0
Individually significant items (35.2) P 52 147 (258.9)
Total EBIT 186.8 18$.4 179.1 187.4 (116.9)
Net interest expense (65.9) (82.8) (81.0) (101.5) (112.2)
Profit/(loss) from ordinary activities '

before tax and outside cquity interests 120.9 102.6 98.1 . 859 (229.1)
Income tax (expense) before individually significant

income tax item (19.3) (12.1) (14.4) (18.3) (8.7)
Individually significant income tax benefit/(expense) 47.9 [ - - - (46.3)
Outside equity interests (3.3) 2.0) (1.5) (1.7 (0.3)
Net profit/(loss) attributable to Burng, Philp :

& Company Limited shareholders 146.2 88.5 82.2 65.9 (285.4)

Statement of Financial Position
Equity attributable to Burns, Philp )

H
i
’
y
i
/

& Company Limited shareholders 460.6 25?.7 111.0 14.6 5.2
Net debt 7319 1,098.5 1,031.4 1,073.2 1,364.8
Total assets 2,364.5 1.860.8 1,596.7 14179 2,238.2
Total liabilities 1,885.0 l.58?.9 1,467.1 1,384.3 2,209.0

b
i

Ordinary Share Information |

Dividends per share Cents Nil Ni) Nil Nil Nil
Number of shares issued Million 802.7 69:9.9 538.8 530.6 530.6
Number of shareholders Thousand 26.7 24.3 23.9 23.4 204
Share price High $ 0.74 0.57 0.68 0.43 2.58
Low § 036 0;38 0.26 0.06 0.04
Last § 0.65 0146 0.42 0.29 0.13
General
Net assets per share § 0.28 Q.SG 0.21 0.03 0.0l
Net debt to equity
(including outside cquity interests) % 152.6 3985 795.8 3,194.0 4,674.0
Basic eamings/(loss) per share Cents 17.3 15;3.6 154 12.4 (53.8)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share Cents 6.3 6.0 7.2 56 (53.8)
EBIT (before individually significant items)
to sales % 16.0 13.0 13.5 12.6 76
EBIT (before individually significan| items) .
to total assets % 9.4 10.0 10.9 12.2 6.3
EBITDA (before individually significant items) 294.5 26;1.9 244.9 243.6 2157
Times interest covered Times 2.8 f2.2 2.2 1.7 1.3
Number of employces Thousand 3.8 3.8 4.1 4.2 4.6
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